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Letter of Transmittal

In The Name of Allah, The Beneficent, The Merciful
The Chairman,
ISFD Board of Governors
Dear Mr. Chairman,

Assalam-u-Alaikum Warahmatullahi Wabarakatuh
In accordance with the Regulations of the Islamic Solidarity Fund for Development, I, on behalf of the Board
of Directors, have the honour to submit for the kind attention of the esteemed Board of Governors, the
Annual Report on the operations and activities of the Islamic Solidarity Fund for Development in 1434H
(2013G).
The Annual Report also includes the audited financial statements of the ISFD as prescribed in Article 18
of the Fund’s Regulations.
Please accept, Mr. Chairman, the assurances of my highest consideration.

Dr. Ahmed Mohamad Ali
President, IDB Group
Chairman of ISFD Board of Directors
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The Islamic Solidarity Fund for
Development (ISFD)
The decision to establish the Islamic Solidarity Fund for Development (ISFD) was taken by the Third Extraordinary
Session of the OIC Summit, held in Makkah Al Mukarramah, 5-6 D. Qadah 1426H (7-8 December 2005) as
Special Fund within the IDB Group which is dedicated to reducing poverty in its member countries through:
•

Promoting pro-poor growth.

•

Emphasizing human development, especially improvements in health care and education.

•

Providing financial support to enhance the productive capacity and sustainable means of income
generation for the poor.

The Fund was officially launched during the 32nd Annual Meeting of the IDB Board of Governors (BOG), held on
12-13 Jumad-I, 1428H (29-30 May, 2007G) in Dakar, Senegal. The Fund is headquartered in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia.
The Fund has been established in the form of a Waqf1 (i.e. Trust), with a principal target capital of US$10.00
billion. All IDB member countries are expected to announce their financial contributions to the Fund and extend
technical and moral support to its operations.
Two overarching themes, in line with the IDB Vision 1440H, define the focus of the ISFD: Improving and enhancing
the income of the poor, and promoting the development of human capital.
ISFD Priorities and Definition of Poverty
The ISFD gives priority to meeting ‘basic needs’, including financing employment opportunities, providing
market outlets especially for the rural poor, improving basic rural and pre-urban infrastructure such as
the supply of drinking water and electric power, and expanding education and health facilities.
The ISFD views poverty as a multi-dimensional phenomenon, encompassing not only low income and
consumption, but also low achievement in fundamental basic needs including education, nutrition,
primary health, water and sanitation, housing, crisis coping capacity, insecurity, and all other forms of
human development.

MAJOR HILIGHTS2
OPERATIONS
Approvals in 1434H (2013G)
•

14 operations, valued at US$478.22 million, to which the ISFD had contributed US$82.13 million in 11
member countries

The concept of Waqf (Trust/ Endowment) implies that only the income which will be generated from the investments of the Fund’s
resources will be available to finance its operations.

1

2

6

Figures as at the end of 1434H (2013G)
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Cumulative Approvals from 1429-34H (2008-13G)
• 56 operations, valued at US$2.0 billion in member countries
RESOURCES OF THE FUND:
•

Targeted Initial Capital: US$10.0 billion

Pledges
•

US$2.68 billion pledged by 44 member countries (US$1.68 billion) and an amount of US$1.0 billion by the
IDB.

Paid-in Contributions
•

44 countries have announced their contributions to the Fund, and 12 countries are yet to announce their
commitments.

•

Paid-in Contributions: US$2.17 billion by member countries (US$1.57 billion) and the IDB (US$0.60
billion).

•

Contributions received (paid-in) from member countries in 1434H: US$323.4 million, made by Kuwait
(US$ 300.0 million), Egypt (US$5.0 million), Indonesia (US$2.4 million), Kazakhstan (US$10.0 million),
Tunisia (US$5.0 million), and Bangladesh (US$1.0 million). In addition, US$100.0 million was received from
the IDB.

INCOME
Operating income in 1434H (2013G)
•

US$29.49 million

Net income in 1434H (2013G)
•

US$26.48 million

A lot of children suffer and die in less developed countries because they do not
have access to routine immunization or health services. Supporting immunization programs is one of the ISFD targets in the health sector.

Primary education is an essential step for fighting poverty in less developed
member countries.
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Chairman’s Message
I am pleased to submit the ISFD Annual Report for 1434H (2013). The global environment has become more favorable in the past
year with economic activity strengthening in high income countries, led by the US, Japan, and the EU. Many developing economies
have also rebounded from the 2008 and 2011 economic downturn. However, in many IDB member countries internal instabilities
have continued to dominate economic activity and near term prospects, particularly in the Middle East and North Africa (MENA).
Although political transitions bring assurances of greater social and economic achievements, in many IDB member countries,
the process remains far from accomplished and has been accompanied by elevated instability and economic consequences with
a marked impact on the vulnerable segments of the society. These developments furthermore confirm the relevance of the ISFD
as an earmarked arm of the IDB for responding to the implications of these crises on the poor with new perspectives and novel
solutions.
In the midst of this complex situation, the ISFD has been able to meet a number of key operational milestones in 1434H (2013G).
Fourteen projects and programs in which the ISFD contribution was US$82.13 million were approved for 11 member countries
during 1434H (2013G), bringing the cumulative ISFD approvals since operationalization of the Fund in 1429H (2008G) to US$305.0
million.These results represent a good achievement if considered against the low level of the paid-in capital resources of the Fund.
The ISFD has continued to benefit from its selectivity and strategic focus. A number of initiatives were introduced by the Fund
which aspire to provide significant progress and offer innovative solutions to reduce the number of people living in extreme poverty
and the proportion of people without access to basic services and sustainable income generation opportunities.To this extent, the
ISFD has embraced programs which have direct impact on creating new job opportunities for the youth, despite the impact of the
global economic and financial crisis. These programs included Microfinance, Vocational Literacy, and Sustainable Villages programs.
The Fund has also continued to support programs which aim to assist in maintaining high school enrollment, particularly primary
and bilingual education. Furthermore, the Fund has implemented health programs to achieve visible improvements in the fight
against local diseases in sub-Saharan Africa.
The ISFD continued its effort for mobilizing its target capital of US$10.0 billion, which is very critical for the implementation of its
programs. As at the end of 1434H (2013G), US$2.68 billion had been pledged to the Fund, consisting of US$1.68 billion pledged
by 44 of the 56 IDB member countries, and US$1.0 billion committed by the IDB. Payments of contributions increased by 27.0%,
from US$1.74 billion in 1433H to US$2,21 billion in 1433H. This was composed of US$1.61 billion paid by member countries and
US$0.60 billion paid by the IDB. In this regard, the ISFD looks forward for the implementation of the ISFD BOG Resolution calling
on member countries to make contributions to the Fund on the basis of a weighted criterion combining a country’s GDP, total
exports and foreign currency reserves and to allocate suitable Waqfs (Trusts) in favour of the ISFD which the ISFD can develop
to generate revenues that can enhance its resources.
No doubt, the fulfillment of the Fund’s capital resources will go a long way in enabling the Fund to be responsive, technically and
financially, to the enormous poverty challenges facing the Ummah. In four decades of experience in working towards the socioeconomic development, we have learned that the unwavering support of our member countries can make a difference. Through
appropriate action to fulfil the capital resources of the Fund, the ISFD can implement its programs and generate the required
momentum to secure a more just and sustainable future for the vulnerable segments in our society. We all have the moral
obligation to ensure that our expectations are matched with deliberate actions for collectively working together to promote
shared responsibility to end extreme poverty in our member countries.

Dr. Ahmad Mohamed Ali
President, IDB Group
Chairman of the ISFD Board of Directors
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The Burden of Poverty in IDB Member
Countries
The global environment has become more favorable in the past year with economic activity strengthening in
high income countries, led by the US and Japan3. Many developing economies have rebounded from the 2011
economic downturn. Leading indicators point at a world output growth of 3¼ percent in 2013 compared to 2¾
percent in 20124. Growth in emerging market and developing economies is estimated at 5.3 percent, and in the
United States at 1.9 percent in 2013. For the same year, in contrast, growth in the euro area is estimated at –0.3
percent because of continued fiscal adjustment, financial fragmentation, and ongoing balance sheet adjustments
in the periphery economies5.
Overall, despite the setbacks, almost all
countries have accelerated their achievements
over the last decade in the education, health,
and income dimensions as measured in the
Human Development Index (HDI)—to the
extent that no country for which data was
available had a lower HDI value in 2012 than
in 2000. As faster progress was recorded
in lower HDI countries during this period,
there was notable convergence in HDI values
globally, although progress was uneven within
and between regions6. An essential part of
human development is equity. Virtually all
studies agree that global income inequality is
high, though there is no consensus on recent
trends7.

Bore holes are the main source of water supply in the Salamt Region in Chad.
The ISFD is implementing a Sustainable Village Program in the area which aims
to replace these pore holes with high quality artesian wells.

Situation in the IDB Member Countries
For the IDB member countries, most of them have made progress on the Millennium Development Goals
(MDGs) and a number of targets have been met, but not all. Extreme poverty, child mortality and maternal health
have improved as has the incidence of HIV/AIDS in the most affected countries8. The incidence of malaria has
also decreased, but by less than projected9. There has been progress on universal primary education and many
3
4

Middle East and North Africa Economic Developments and Prospects, World Bank, October 2013
World Economic Outlook, IMF, 2013.

Op cit. Periphery economies refer to those countries which have generally weaker economies and are currently in need for rescue packages, such as
Greece, Spain, Italy, Portugal and Ireland.
5

10

6

Human Development Report 2013, UNDP.

7

Op cit.

8

MDGs Report, United Nations, 2013.

9

Op cit.
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countries are on target, but quality has been inadequate. The struggle for gender equality is making inroads, with
increasing women employment and girls education. This good performance raises hopes for a stronger capacity
to address poverty and associated social challenges in the medium term.
Arab Region: This notwithstanding, the political and social unrest that followed the Arab Spring of 2011
continue to dominate the economic scene and near term prospects of the Middle East and North Africa (MENA)
region. In 2013, rising social and political tensions in many countries had weighed heavily on the buoyancy of the
region, causing FDI and investment and industrial output in many countries to plummet. The economic activity
has also been affected by frequent strikes, disrupted work activities, infrastructure problems, declining FDI and
investments, population displacement and spillover risks to neighbouring countries10.
The impact of the conflicts is also particularly pronounced in the trade sector, affecting goods and services
trade, and in particular the tourism sector. Trade disruptions have pushed up domestic prices of staples such
as wheat flour, which has important implications on welfare, particularly for poor households. They are also
exacerbating the already difficult labor market conditions and are expected to result in further unemployment
and lack of decent work opportunities with far reaching implications for the poor people’s lives.
Although political transitions bring promises of greater political and economic freedom, in MENA the process
remains far from complete and has been accompanied with increased political and macroeconomic instability
with a marked impact on the poor segments of the society. Oil production in developing MENA oil exporters –
accounting for nearly a third of the region’s oil output – has fallen over the past year by 5%, reflecting security
setbacks, infrastructure problems, strikes, and sanctions11. Meanwhile, the GCC oil exporters have continued to
make up the loss in oil production, while providing financial support to the region’s transition economies.
The African Region: Although the African
Region has been less affected by the recent
global social and political tensions, poverty
remains pervasive across this region, both
in monetary and multidimensional aspects.
GDP per capita levels are historically low and
the poverty headcount ratios at US$1.25 a
day exceed 50 percent for many countries,
such as Mali, Sierra Leone, Mozambique,
Chad, Niger, Uganda, Somalia, and Nigeria.
Similarly, in terms of HDI, they are among the
lowest of any region. Among the IDB member
countries, with the exception of Yemen and
Afghanistan, they also rank the lowest in
201312. In terms of multidimensional poverty

Self-employment is a proven effective way to help the poor to generate income.
Through microfinance, the ISFD aims to increase the relative rate of movement
from aid dependency to self-employment.

For example, it is reported that the increase in demand for health services caused by the Syrian conflict is straining Lebanon’s health system. The
conflict is also drastically affecting the tourism and trade sectors in Lebanon.

10

11

Middle East and North Africa Economic Developments and Prospects, World Bank, October 2013

12

Human Development Report, UNDP, 2013.

Annual Report 1434H -2013G

11

index, lack of education, inadequate living standard, and lack of income, make the Multi Poverty Index (MPI)
values particularly high for the majority of the African countries. The lowest in this category are Niger, Mali,
Burkina Faso, Guinea, Comoros, Mozambique and Chad, which suffer from severe multidimensional poverty.
Moreover, deprivations in rudimentary services and core human needs is experienced by more than 50% of the
population in the African Region.
Asian Region: Despite steep challenges, the developing member countries in the Asian Region have defied
the odds, showing significant progress in addressing poverty challenges and improving human development
indicators. Countries across the region have shown growth in per capita income, significant drop in child
mortality, and increased primary and secondary school enrollment for both boys and girls, and overall there is
no serious multidimensional poverty as in the African region13. Yet some countries lag behind in terms of the
number of population living below US$1.25 a day; such as Afghanistan, Bangladesh, Tajikistan and Kyrgyzstan.
Examining the MPI indicators, for the majority of the Asian countries, less than one-third of the population
suffers from deprivation in these indicators. Similarly, regarding the education and health, most of these countries
suffer deprivation relating to these poverty indicators. At least one-third of this group also suffer from food
deficiency as well as deprivations related to sanitation.
On the other hand, Global Hunger Index (GHI) values display a great variation among the member countries
in this region. While GHI values of four Asian countries are lower than 5, namely Albania, Iran, Kazakhstan and
Turkey, GHI values for two countries are severely high, namely Bangladesh and Pakistan, which are also among
the top 10 IDB member countries with the highest GHI values. However, all the Asian countries had made
noticeable improvement on the GHI values over the past two decades.

Food Crisis
The global financial and food crises that have
been encountered in the recent period had
far reaching impacts on the state of poverty in
the low income countries through economic
retrenchments, negative effects on the terms
of trade and consequent job losses, especially
in countries which are net food importers. It
is estimated by the World Bank that the high
food and fuel prices alone have increased the
number of the extremely poor in the world
by at least 100 million14, and the IDB member
countries, accounting for an estimated 40%
of the world’s poor, no doubt account for a
sizable share of this increase.
13

Some IDB member countries, particularly in Asia and sub-Sahara Africa, continue
to have extreme cases of food shortages.

Op cit.

Baker, Judy L. (2008) Impacts of Financial, Food and Fuel Crisis on the Urban Poor. Directions in Urban Development. Urban Development Unit,World
Bank, Washington.
14
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Beside the rural poor, among those at greatest
risk are the urban poor that are dependent
on the market to access food, since the share
of food in their total expenditures is much
higher than that of wealthier populations.
Food represents about 10-20 percent
of consumer spending in industrialized
nations, but as much as 60-80 percent in a
typical less developed country15. Thus, most
households in the IDB member countries
are affected by food crises, specially femaleheaded households.

Enhancing agricultural productivity is vital for enhancing the food security of the poor.

In addition to the old agricultural technology and low yields in the IDB member countries, the already present
impacts of climate change are demanding innovation and partnership in agriculture to address food deficiency
on a sustainable basis. Building resilience in agricultural systems and acquiring cutting-edge science to get
knowledge about better farming practices to the people working in the fields and pastures who need it, is also
very important. This is not a trivial undertaking about some uncertain future – it is a fact which is posing real
challenges to farmers today, and it’s having an impact on their bottom lines. However, solutions to step up to
this challenge must be sought, and they are much needed as IDB member countries have to feed their growing
population with nutritious food. This requires enhancing the IDB/ISFD intervention to make a shift in how they
grow and how they avoid wasting food.

Youth Unemployment
The IDB member countries are facing a worsening youth employment crisis with increasing youth who are
looking for work. In particular, the Middle East and North Africa is currently the region with the highest youth
unemployment in the world.The share of youth (ages 15 to 24) in total unemployment is at least double the total
rate16. Moreover, at about 25%, the youth unemployment rate in the MENA exceeds that of any other region in
the world17.The recent social and political events in the region have contributed to a decline in economic activity
and to increased unemployment.
The ILO has warned of a “scarred” generation of young workers facing a dangerous mix of high unemployment,
increased inactivity and precarious work in the transitions countries in the Middle East, as well as persistently high
working poor whose incomes still fell below the official poverty level18.There are increasingly less opportunities
for work that is productive and delivers a fair income, security in the workplace and social protection for families
and better prospects for personal development.
15

Effects of the global financial crisis on the food security of poor urban households, Dr. Gordon Prain, RUAF Foundation, Leusden, July 2010.

World Economic Forum, Addressing the 100 Million Youth Challenge-Perspectives on Youth Employment in the Arab World, Maqsood Ahmed, June
2012

16

17

Op cit.

18

Youth Unemployment, ILO, 2013 (http://www.ilo.org/global/topics/youth-employment/lang--en/index.htm)
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However, there is no doubt that productive
employment and decent work are key
elements to reduction of poverty. High
labour force growth, skill mismatches, labour
and product market rigidities, large public
sectors, and high reservation wages have been
key factors behind the large and persistent
level of youth unemployment. Countries
in the region must face this challenge and
not lose sight of the medium-term task of
creating more jobs, which is an essential
element in fighting poverty and generating
inclusive growth. In this context, in addition The issue of youth unemployment in now very crucial for most of the IDB member
to the internal reforms, countries may need countries. The ISFD provides support through targeted programs of Microfinance
and Vocational literacy to help member countries address this problem.
technical and financial assistance to improve
the business climate and initiate effective training programs to facilitate the integration of young workers into
the labour market over the medium term.
Energy for the Poor: Energy can play a crucial role in improving quality of life and is a key imperative for
economic development and achieving the MDGs which were established as a promise to free people from
extreme poverty and multiple deprivations. Lack of access to adequate, affordable and reliable energy can be
a severe constraint on the three pillars of sustainable development: economic, social and environmental. In the
IDB member countries, particularly LDMCs, energy poverty is still widespread as nearly 600 million people still
have no access to electricity19.
Energy contributes to the eradication of poverty by increasing productive hours at home and work place. It
improves access to education by allowing children to study at home during dark evening hours. It also increases
the safety of women, girls and children walking in dark or remote areas and can reduce rates of violence. Also,
energy is a critical enabler for primary health care services, especially maternal and childbirth emergencies.
Therefore, access to affordable energy drastically improves the standard of medical care and reduce mortality
rates in poor or remote areas.
It is expected that reliance on fossil fuels and biomass will continue for some time in most IDB member
countries, so this aspect should be taken into account in the overall IDB/ISFD energy interventions, as well as
national development plans, particularly how to encourage more sustainable management and efficient uses.
Practitioners and energy development specialists agree that a new approach needs to be taken to ensure that
energy underpins efforts to achieve the MDGs . This means:
-

19

14

Taking a people-centred approach, reaching beyond the technical issues, to deliver energy services that
meet peoples’ needs and priorities.

ISFD estimate, calculated on the basis of the Electrification Index Table, Human Development Report, UNDP, 2013
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-

Ensuring that communities have a voice
in the decision making process on how
to meet their energy needs.

-

Working across all sectors to integrate
energy more fully into development
processes early on.

-

Working at local, national and
international levels, in order to develop
pro-poor policies based on real
evidence of the impact of energy on
poor people.

-

Taking an holistic approach to energy
rather than a project based approach.

-

Building a deeper understanding of
the links between energy and poverty
reduction.

Solar energy can provide the first step out of poverty by providing new skills and
sources of income. The ISFD has introduced a Flagship Program called “Renewable Energy for Poverty Reduction” which aims to provide power to the poor at
an affordable price.

The prominence accorded to sustainable development makes this a propitious time for the ISFD to lead the
advocacy of sustainable energy as a key facilitator to achieving the MDGs in member countries. The ISFD is
suited to build partnerships with governments, NGOs, the private sector, and development institutions to help
ensure access to renewable energy as a means to reduce poverty at national and local levels.
External aid constraint: Many of the MDGs are not being achieved in the world’s poorest countries, yet
only one year has remained until the target date and new targets are being set for the developing countries.
The financing of these goals is not merely
inadequate, but the temporary nature of
the financing and directing it to the most
needy recipients, hinder achievement of the
Goals in countries that may benefit most. A
recent series of reports has revealed that
much aid is not reaching the poor, not just
because of lack of transparency, but because
of diversion of aid for other purposes and
macroeconomic conditions imposed on poor
country governments . It is also argued that
aid being allocated by donors is misaligned
with the actual needs of populations, in spite About 80% of diseases in the developing world are water-related. Hence, supply
of repeated donor commitments to align aid of safe drinking water to poor area is one of the main objectives of the ISFD
Sustainable Villages Program.
with domestic needs.
The IDB LDMCs remain dependent on external aid to compensate for shortfalls in government resources which
are needed for maintaining and expanding priority social services, and overcome the policy and institutional
constraints of addressing poverty. Evidence shows that financing of the MDGs is not merely insufficient, but that
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the ad-hoc and temporary nature of the available financing, as well as challenges to coordinating its delivery and
directing it to the most needy recipients, hinder achievement of the MDGs in the LDMCs.
An IDB study estimates that in order for member countries to reduce poverty by half within the MDGs
framework, as a group they will need to grow at 4.8 per cent per annum and sustain an average per capita growth
rate of 3 per cent. To achieve this, it also estimates that they would require an average investment of 23.6 per
cent of GDP per year. Obviously, achieving other MDGs targets, and indeed the targets related to post-2015
agenda, will require even more resources31.
So far, only a few countries have lived up to the developed countries’ pledge that ODA should constitute at
least 0.7 per cent of their gross national income20. Net official development assistance (ODA) from the OECD’s
Development Assistance Committee (DAC) countries rose slightly in nominal terms, but actually decreased in
net ODA of 2.7 per cent in real terms31. The need for more targeted aid therefore, remains essential for the
LDMCs to continue their fight against poverty.World leaders have made strong promises in several occasions in
this regard, but they must have the conviction to act and deliver on these promises to make a difference.

ROLE OF THE ISFD
Despite the significant strides in pursuit of development and achievement of the MDGs, ensuring effective
programs and financial resources to address poverty in member countries remains a critical challenge for
the ISFD. This is particularly so in view of the big shortfalls in foreign aid and shrinkages in economic growth
because of the crises in the rich world.These countries also face significant challenges that must be overcome in
order to achieve inclusive and equitable and sustainable development for all. New and emerging challenges that
straddle the peace and development divide in the transition countries also pose challenges to good governance,
sustainable development, and addressing poverty in these countries.
Climate change, volatile food and energy crisis, and the global economic downturn, are compounding the
challenges in other IDB member countries, particularly LDMCs. Notwithstanding, the Fund will continue to
champion innovative programs that will reaffirm and build on its core areas of intervention as set out in the IDB
Group Policy for Poverty Reduction. Thus, the ISFD will:
-

-

Implement innovative programs that will ensure access of the poor to sustainable income-generation
opportunities, enhance their food security, improve access to safe water, support women’s empowerment
and well-being, and thus help them to break away from the vicious circle of poverty.
Streamline gender, governance and environmental issues in all its operations to increase benefits to the
poor and maximize their impact.
Emphasize human development, especially improvements in health care and education, in its programs.
Establish specialized Trust Funds to address specific poverty issues in the member countries.
Foster and harness full ownership and commitment by member countries as a pre-requisite of the success
of its programs.

The ISFD operational program for 1435H (2014) has been developed to achieve these goals. The ISFD will also
continue to play its due role in mobilizing the resources which are critical to the success of its programs. It will
also leverage its comparative advantage and strategic fit to attract partners to enhance these resources.Through
acceleration of the implementation of these program, the Fund will step its efforts to achieve its mandate of
creating a lasting impact on the poverty situation in the IDB Member Countries.
20
This refers to the repeated commitment of the world›s governments to commit 0.7% of rich-countries› gross national product (GNP) to Official
Development Assistance. See for example the Millennium Project, UN, http://www.unmillenniumproject.org/press/07.htm
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Operations in 1434H (2013G)
ISFD Projects/Programs
The ISFD financing operations are guided by the IDB Group Policy on Poverty Reduction, the ISFD multi-year
strategy, Member Country Partnership Strategies (MCPSs), and the OIC Ten-Year Plan of Action. The ISFD also
draws on the IDB experience and that of other institutions engaged in the same endeavor and engages external
consultants to support the process. Overall, the ISFD operations are formulated based on two considerations.
-

First, the needs of the member countries, particularly those of LDMCs for their poverty reduction efforts.

-

Second, the ‘operating environment’; the international experience, opportunities and challenges, and ‘best
practice’ of poverty reduction projects, as well as the ways through which these practices could be attuned
and made more responsive in light of the Islamic principles of brotherhood and solidarity.

Combating poverty requires targeted
interventions in the areas of social and
human development such as basic education,
health services and enhancing capabilities,
particularly for women and children,
empowering citizens, men and women equally,
and providing the poor and vulnerable with
income generation opportunities.
Thus, the Fund gives priority to projects
that mainly addresses these areas of
poverty alleviation. It also emphasizes the
importance of partnerships and co-financing
to supplement its limited resources and scale ISFD Site visit to SVP Project Location of Molumbu Sede, Milange District,
Zambezia Province in Mozambique
up its projects and incorporates components
in its programs to address cross cutting issues, such as environment preservation, gender, governance and youth
employment. The ISFD will also holds regular workshops to promote and elaborate poverty reduction research
and best practices, particularly in the areas of poverty assessment, designing and implementation of poverty
alleviation projects and programs, as well as monitoring and evaluation.
The ISFD is selective in all aspects of its poverty reduction support. The choice of countries, beneficiaries
within countries (and specifically the disadvantaged and vulnerable groups, for example women and children)
and projects is determined according to laid down transparent criteria and operational procedures of the IDB.
It also put emphasis on dealing with local, community and grass-roots entities where practicable to achieve an
‘inclusive’ approach to poverty reduction work.
The ISD has already built up a track record in the selection and implementation of pro-poor projects and
programs. The ISFD recognizes that it will need to promote a qualitative growth in its LDMCs by supporting
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the rural and urban infrastructures, increasing the added value of productive sectors and extending financing
for income generating activities to the poor. The Fund, therefore, emphasize key aspects of pro-poor growth
activities including: rural and agricultural development; rural and secondary infrastructure; micro-finance; and
vocational training. In all these areas policies
and support are designed to benefit the
targeted poor.

Projects/Programs Approvals
Two overarching themes defined the focus
of the ISFD’s poverty reduction activities in
1434H: (a) ensuring that these activities create
additional jobs and employment that reach
the target groups of poor and disadvantaged
people through multi-sector interventions;
and (b) promoting the development of human
capital by boosting education and health
support.

Consultations with the local community beneficiaries of the Integrated Community
Driven Development (ICDD) PNPM Project, Indonesia

During the year, 14 operations21 amounting to US$82.13 million were approved for 11 member countries,
compared to 17 operations amounting to US$77.2 million approved for 19 member countries in 1433H (2012G).
The total cost of the projects approved in 1434H is estimated at US$478.2 million.
These approvals covered the key sectors that form the core of poverty reduction programs of the ISFD, namely
education, vocational literacy, microfinance, health, rural and agricultural development, transport and power. The
thrust of the ISFD approach in targeting these operations was to combat poverty, particularly for women and
children, and provide the poor and vulnerable with opportunities for income generation on a sustainable basis.
The ISFD recognizes that human capital is the primary asset of the poor and its development is of fundamental
importance in poverty reduction. Projects in the education and health areas create the foundation on which most
poverty reduction activities are subsequently built. In education, the ISFD has continued to emphasize primary
education as a top priority, especially linked to literacy programmes and vocational training. In the health sector,
financing primary healthcare units has remained a top pro-poor priority.Within this, ante-natal care (in particular
obstetric fistula) and disease eradication feature prominently. In addition, public information and awareness
programmes have been stepped up, as the ISFD considers these to be important in disease prevention.

LDMCs are major beneficiaries of the ISFD
The ISFD recognizes the huge scale of the endeavour facing it and its member countries, as around 400 million
people living in extreme poverty in 31 of the IDB Least Developed Member Countries (or 40% of the global
These include 2 grants approvals of Waqf allocations under the ISFD, namely the grants for Blindness Control Project for Chad
and Niger (US$025 m); and Obstetric Fistula Prevention Projects for Uganda (US$0.13 m). It is also worth noting that some of the
approvals in 1434H (2014G) will be financed under the commitment capacity for 1435H (2015G).
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total living on less than US$1.25 a day). And there is some indication that in terms of absolute numbers the
problem is getting worse in Sub-Saharan Africa. Thus, in accordance with the IDB Policy on Poverty Reduction,
the LDMCs were the main beneficiaries of the ISFD programs during 1434H (2013G). In fact, the approved
policy for ISFD financing stipulates that 80 percent of the ISFD annual financing is directed towards the LDMCs
and 20 percent to poverty pockets in non-LDMCs. In adhering to this policy, the ISFD aims to maximize its
support for these countries by combining accepted successful lessons of experience with innovative projects
and programs that respond to their needs for combating poverty.
ISFD Project Approvals by Sector 1430-1434 (2009 - 2013)
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During the year, the Fund continued to explore the opportunities for widening the coverage of its flagship
programs, in particular the Microfinance program, vocational literacy, and the Sustainable villages Program
as tools for addressing rural poverty through multi-sector interventions and fast track the achievement of
the MDGs at the village level. The Drylands Project – which was approved for East African countries, namely
Djibouti, Somalia and Uganda, has also continued to receive the ISFD support in 1434H (2013G). The program
takes a people centered approach, whose development objective is to contribute to rural poverty reduction and
increased food security for the thousands of people who depend directly upon a highly variable natural resource
base for their livelihoods, and most of them are poor and marginalized. Vulnerability of these communities to
environmental, economic and socio-cultural challenges (such as climate risks, drought, land degradation, poor

The start workshop of the
Sustainable Village Project
was held at the Centre of
Community Development
and Technology Transfer,
Ministry of Science and
Technology,
Maputo,
Mozambique
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markets, migration) have been through this
program reduced and adaptation/mitigation
capacity has been built. These communities
also benefit from improved local governance,
management and utilization of natural
resources.
Similarly, a MillenniumVillage Project (Phase-2)
was approved for Uganda. The immediate
objective is to catalyze and energize the
achievement and fast tracking of the MDGs
in the project’s area. It is expected that
this will result in improved livelihoods and
social-economic well-being of the targeted Poor conditions of primary schools in Africa are main reason for the poor educacommunities. It is aimed to create sustainable tion quality in the continent.
income generation within the targeted community by raising agricultural productivity and promoting investment in
the business development sector to rapidly increase long-term income generation opportunities. Similarly, Phase III of
the Integrated Community Driven Development (ICDD) Project in Indonesia has been approved in 1434H (2013G).
The Fund’s programs also targeted health sector through grant assistance in three countries, namely Chad, Niger
and Uganda in 1434H. Similarly education projects included a bilingual lower secondary education development
project in Chad and vocational literacy projects in two Morocco and Egypt. A women entrepreneurship
development and youth employment support was targeted in Senegal.

ISFD Project Approvals by Region 1430-1434 (2009 - 2013)
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In the infrastructure, an access to energy for rural communities as well as a rural road project were approved
for Togo. It also approved and a project targeting an improvement of electricity supply for Kyrgyzstan which
has enormous hydro-power potential that can be economically exploited and can bring benefits for different
regions in Central Asia if it were tapped.The ISFD support to these projects is a reflection of its approved policy
to promote socio-economic development and poverty reduction in member countries through improved access
to integrated national infrastructure networks and services.
The BOD also approved changes on the co-financing terms and conditions under the Microfinance for Rural
Area Project Loan approved for Kazakhstan in June 2011. The approved amendments in the on-going project’s
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Terms and Conditions were made on consideration that they will ensure smooth implementation of the project
and expedite the utilization of the ISFD loan proceeds.
The ISFD support to these projects is a reflection of its approved policy to promote socio-economic development
and poverty reduction in member countries through improved access to integrated national infrastructure
networks and services.

Promoting Co-Financing with Development Partners
Co-financing as part of the drive to mobilize resources is vital for leveraging the ISFD resources to have a
meaningful impact on the beneficiary countries. There is evident need for partnerships, including with external
development finance institutions, to enhance the effectiveness and efficiency of ISFD financing in member
countries. Co-financing can lead to improvement in efficiency across the financing institutions, achieving best
practices, reducing cost, catalyzing greater investments, and “doing more with less.”
The ISFD therefore accords a lot of emphasis to mobilizing funds for projects areas of common interest to the
Governments, ISFD and other donors that without co-financing would not have come to the recipient country.
The ISFD partners with other co-financiers either for technical assistance activities or financing of separate
components of its projects/programs. Co-financing may be in the form of a grant or a loan (concessional or
non-concessional). It can also be provided on a parallel or joint basis, although the majority is provided on a
parallel basis.
In 1434H (2013G), the total cost of the approved projects was US$478.22 million, whereas the ISFD contribution
was US$82.13 million – representing 18.6% of the total financing, compared to 10.9% in the previous year and
28% in the 1432H (2011G). The remaining cost was covered by IDB and other co-financiers including national
governments, multilateral institutions, bilateral donors, and NGOs.
Importance of strategic partnerships: In line with the IDB Policy on Poverty Reduction, the ISFD strives to
form strategic partnerships for an effective implementation of this policy. Strategic partnerships and alliances
give the Fund a competitive advantage
and an opportunity to access a broader
range of resources and expertise than
it could otherwise have. This means that
the partnership can assist in offering our
beneficiary countries distinctive skill sets and
co-financing opportunities that add value to
the ISFD intervention. Partnering with NGOs
and specialized agencies, such as in the health
sector (example: Fighting Obstetric Fistula
in Eastern Uganda operation), ensures that
these partners deliver excellence in service
areas that are vital for the success of the
ISFD projects. They also create an incentive
Significant attention has been given by the CIS countries to women self-employfor the beneficiary countries to use ISFD
ment and creating the requisite conditions for the successful promotion of small
financing responsibly to fulfill the project/
businesses over the past two decades.
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program targets if they participate in the
costs and provide the ISFD with higher
leverage for its limited funds, so that it can
more comprehensively attain its objectives. It
is also one of the best ways of strengthening
working relationships, enhancing governance,
and thus amplifying interests and successes.
The ISFD has developed partnerships with
a broad development community. The
primary partners of the ISFD in development
interventions are the governments of the
beneficiary countries. However, the Fund
has strengthened its policy dialogue by
involving a broader range of stakeholders in
its work, particularly in the implementation
of its Vocational Literacy Program (VOLIP),
Microfinance Support Program (MFSP),
and Sustainable Villages Program (SVP). In
doing so, the ISFD aims to learn lessons by
strategically partnering with institutions and
organizations that have rich experience or
better placed to secure participation and
effective implementation of these programs.

The Horn of Africa is facing what has been called the worst drought in 60 years
and a number of areas have been hit with famines and severe food shortages as
a result. The ISFD is implementing a number of projects in the region which are
partly targeted to combat this problem.

The Fund has continued to strengthen its
collaborative relationship with the Earth
Institute of the University of Columbia in
New York and the MDG Centre in Nairobi
particularly in the areas of the Sustainable Significant droughts are also occurring in the Sahara belt in sub-Saharan Africa,
such as Darfur region in Sudan, and the northern parts of Chad and Mali.
Villages Program and the Drylands Initiative.
Strong working relationships are also being developed with the World Bank, Asian Development Bank, Japan
International Cooperation Agency (JICA), World Assembly of Muslim Youth (WAMY), World Congress of
Muslim Philanthropists (WCMP), Qatar Red Crescent, The Arab Bank for Development in Africa (BADEA), the
OPEC Fund for International Development (OFID), the Abdul Latif Jameel Poverty Action Lab (J-PAL) of the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT), and Oxfam International. Relationships with these partners are
geared toward fostering mutual sharing of knowledge and technical expertise and efforts in project co-financing
and technical cooperation.The Fund is also in the process of entering into collaborative partnerships with many
selected UN and other international and regional agencies which are engaged in the area of fighting poverty in
the IDB member countries. Potentially, these partnerships can be further harnessed to assist the Fund in the
areas of project appraisal, supervision of project implementation and loan administration services, analyzing
impacts on the ground, and sustaining the development efforts after completion of the projects/ programs.
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Brief Description of the Approved ISFD Projects in 1434H (2013G)
1.

Women Entrepreneurship Development and Youth Employment Support Project Senegal
This project is in perfect alignment with the Senegal’s/IDB Member Country Partnership Strategy (MCPS),
and is addressing its two pillars: (i) enhancing competitiveness; and (ii) increase agriculture productivity and
value chain.
The project will contribute directly to the following MCPS enablers: (i) increased access to Islamic finance/
Micro-Finance; (ii) Agro-Industries development (including livestock); (ii) building strategic reserves; and (iv)
Human Capital Development. It will also pay special attention to women’s entrepreneurship development
and youth employment, income diversification and increase competitiveness of rural produce through
agricultural value chain development and access to Microfinance.
The project will finance the following components: (i) a line of Microfinance with a strong focus on women
in horticulture, dairy, rice, and fisheries value chain; (ii) infrastructure and services for health, education,
rural infrastructure, energy, water & sanitation, agriculture and fisheries; (iii) Training & Capacity Building for
the micro finance institutions, beneficiaries in the business development services and services deliveries in
health, education, agriculture etc.; and (iv) Project implementation and Monitoring & Evaluation. The total
cost of the project is US$22.5 million, with US$5.0 as ISFD loan, US$15.0 million as IDB loan, and US$2.5
million will be provided by the Government of Senegal.

2.

Millennium Villages Program (MVP) Phase-II, Uganda
Like in other parts of Sub-Saharan Africa, some communities in Uganda are faced with insufficient food
production, low household income, and lack of access to the basic services: primary health care, education,
potable water and sanitation. The likelihood that people faced with these conditions will not achieve the
MDGs by 2015 is quite high. Thus the Millennium Village Project (MVP) model was specifically designed
to fast-track the achievement of the MDGs. During the first Phase of the MVP, notable achievements
have been made, especially in terms of improving food security and basic services. These gains need to
be consolidated and enhanced in terms of scale and sustainability through capacity building and business
development, which are the focus of the MVP Phase-II. It is envisaged that this project will further
consolidate and enhance sustained economic improvements, resilience and a significant improvement in
living standards of the targeted communities.
The project’s development objective is to make a substantive progress towards achievement of MDGs
in the targeted project areas. It will attempt to create sustainable income generation within the targeted
community by raising agricultural productivity and promoting investment in the business development
sector to rapidly increase long-term income generation opportunities.
The total project cost is US$11.49 million. The approved IDB/ISFD contribution towards this cost is
US$9.75 million: (US$5.75 million IDB Loan, and US$4.00 million ISFD Loan).The targeted community will
participate by way of in-kind contribution.
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3.

Vocational Literacy Program for Poverty Reduction (VOLIP) - Morocco
This Program is designed to contribute towards the bridging of two gaps which have been identified
by the MCPS for Morocco (2013-2016) as constraints to the country’s development, namely: illiteracy
and shortages of vocational training services. The program combines skills development and access to
microfinance, particularly for rural women, in harmony with the National Initiative for Human Development
(INDH) adopted by Government of Morocco.The program is also in line with the IDB 1440H Vision and the
IDB Policy Paper on Poverty Reduction which identifies education as one of the pillars of comprehensive
human development in its member countries (with emphasis on primary education, literacy programs and
vocational training).
The project’s main objective is to contribute towards the national efforts to reduce poverty, particularly among
rural youth and women, through (i) reducing the illiteracy rate from 30% in 2012 to less than 20% by 2016; and
(ii) increasing net enrollment rate in primary education from 97% in 2012 to 100% by the end of 2017.
The total project cost is US$8.75 million. The approved ISFD contribution towards this cost is US$7.50
million, while the Government will contribute US$1.25 million.

4.

Integrated Community Driven Development (ICDD) Phase III Project – Indonesia
This project supports the Third Medium‑Term Development Plan 2010-2014 of Indonesia (supporting
three priority areas of poverty reduction), the Strategy for Urban Development, and the Government of
Indonesia’s Policy for the wider PNPM Mandiri program.
The project aims to: a) improve the physical and social infrastructure in target areas; b) enhance village
economy by providing access to finance and markets; and c) build community institutions with local
government support. Some of the expected key results include: a) improving the quality of physical; b)
increase the proportion of self-help groups (SHGs) involved in economic and livelihood activities from 6%
to 14% by the time of project completion; and c) establish at least 12 Business Development Centers and
3 Credit and Savings Groups which will remain operational for three years after project completion.
The project aims to achieve its objective through the four key components, namely: a) block finance; b)
building community institutions; c) knowledge generation & reverse linkage; and d) support the Project’s
Management Unit.
The total project cost is estimated at US$254.01 million. Of this amount the ISFD will provide US$10.0
million, and the IDB will provide a combination of Istisna financing for an amount of US$ 187.00 million
and a loan financing for an amount of US$8.0 million. The rest, US$49.01 million (19.3% of total cost), will
be provided by the Indonesian Government.

5.

Integrated Development Project – Uganda
Poverty is particularly widespread in the dry-land areas of Eastern Africa. This situation drew the attention
of many development partners. The IDB approved in April 2012 the Eastern African Regional Dryland
Program (EARDP) amounting US$ 35.0 million for Djibouti (US$10.0 million), Somalia (US$5.0 million),
and Uganda (US$20.0 million). Poverty situation is high within the communities of the dry-land regions
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of Uganda. The project area (Karamoja) has the highest Human Poverty Indices resulting from drought,
cattle rustling, animal death, lack of water, poor farming practices, ill-health, disability, lack of skills, and
unemployment.
With targeted efforts in some critical areas as proposed in this project, pastoralist communities can
achieve a major gain in productivity and economic wellbeing. The project falls within the Uganda National
Development Plan and is aligned with the IDB Policy of achieving food self-sufficiency and alleviating
poverty. The development objective of the project is to strengthen the livelihood and reduce vulnerability
of pastoralists and agro-pastoralists in the Karamoja region of Northern Uganda. This objective will be
achieved through: (a) strengthening the pastoralists production system, and (b) improving access to basic
rural production and market infrastructure, as well as basic social services.
6.

Access To Energy for Rural Communities in Togo Project – Togo
Poverty rate in Togo is very high and mainly a rural phenomenon.The national poverty rate is at 59%, while
it is 73% in rural areas and as high as 90% in the Savanes region). The project is aligned with the MDG
that calls for ending poverty, while provision of electricity has proven to be an effective way of uplifting
the standards of living and reducing poverty. The Government’s poverty reduction and economic growth
strategy prioritizes boosting the low access rate to electricity. The project will support the Government’s
efforts towards achieving its development objectives in the areas of maternal and child health, universal
education, youth employment, etc.
The project aims at contributing towards meeting the national development goal for reduction of energy
poverty, particularly in rural areas. Accordingly, the project is expected to contribute to the increase of the
national electricity access rate from 26% in 2011 to 42% in 2020, and the rural access rate from 5% to 18%
in the same period.
The project will include the following major components:
(i)

Construction/installation of medium voltage network (539 km), low voltage network (163 km), and
substations (71), as well as costumer connections (5,000), including public lighting.

(ii)

Consultancy services component encompassing project baseline study for inventory of the current
poverty profile and existing social/ economic infrastructure in the targeted localities; Update of the
Environmental and Social Impact Assessment study (ESMP); Project detailed design; Development
of promotion schemes to achieve higher household connection rate; Procurement assistance; and
works supervision.

(iii) Project management support component involving the acquisition of furniture, logistical support for
project implementation and monitoring, salary premiums for the project staff, start-up workshop, and
the and the PMU.
(iv) Financial audit of the project by an independent Audit Firm.
The total cost of the project is estimated at US$18.90 million. This amount will be financed through
an IDB loan of US$7.0 million, ISFD loan of US$4.0 million, the Togolese Government US$1.9 million,
and US$6.0 by other financiers.
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7.

Vocational Literacy Program for Poverty Reduction (VOLIP), Egypt
This project is in line with the revised Education Strategic Plan (2012-2017) of the Government of Egypt
(GOE). It is aligned with IDB 1440H Vision, Comprehensive Human Development and Poverty Reduction
Strategy and is part of ISFD Vocational Literacy Program for Poverty Reduction Program.
The main objective of the project is to reduce poverty, particularly among the rural youths and women
by enhancing relevant functional literacy competencies, practical skills and productivity. It is expected to
specifically improve literacy and vocational skills of the youths (16 - 24 years), and help women workers
(24-49 years) gain access to job functional literacy, skills training and microfinance. The project will benefit
4,000 unemployed youths, 7,000 rural women workers, and 280 trainers.
The project components include: (i) Youth vocational training through identification of beneficiaries and
training providers, renovation and construction of existing and new centers, acquisition of furniture,
equipment, teaching materials, curriculum development, and training of 4,000 learners; (ii) Women
vocational literacy and training through identification of the beneficiaries, awareness creation and
sensitization; training of trainers; acquisition of training materials and aids; and training of 7,000 learners
(women workers); (iii) Microfinance support through a Revolving Fund for 50% of the youths and 60% of
women workers, capacity buildings for microfinance institutions, training of beneficiaries and microfinance;
and (iv) Support project’s management, including baseline studies; PMU staff, monitoring & evaluation
system, studies and supervision consultant, mid-term/closing workshops and financial audit.
The total cost of the project is estimated at US$9.0 million, of which the ISFD will contribute US$8.0
million and the Government of Egypt US$1.0 million.

8.

Bilingual Lower Secondary Education Development Project – Chad
The proposed project is in line with the objectives of the National Development Plan (PND), 2013-2015,
and the Interim Strategy for Education and Literacy (SIPEA), 2013-2015 of Chad. It is derived from the
Program Framework on the Generalization of Bilingual Education in Chad (April 2013) supported by the
IDB. In addition, the project conforms to the IDB 1440H Vision and Comprehensive Human Development
and Poverty Reduction Strategy as well as the Special Program for the Development of Africa.
The main objective of this project is to support the Government efforts in promoting bilingual education
at all levels of education. Specifically, it aims at introducing the bilingual education at the lower secondary
level through: (a) increasing access, (b) improving the quality, and (c) enhancing the capacity of the staff of
Ministry of Basic Education and Literacy (MEFA).
The project’s scope comprises: (a) construction and equipping of 8 bilingual lower secondary schools
with potable water and electricity; (b) providing initial (pre-service) training for teachers and pedagogical
advisers; (c) competency-based curricula development, (d) editing and printing of curricula booklets,
teaching and learning manuals and teachers’ guides, (e) provision of bilingual reference books and other
teaching materials, (f) acquisition of teaching aids; and (g) providing support to project management and
institutional development.
The total cost of the project is US$15.65 million. Of this amount the ISFD will contribute US$4.0 million,
the IDB US$1.0 million, and the Government of Chad US$1.65 million.
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9.

Improvement of Electricity Supply in Arka Area of Batken Region Project – Kyrgyzstan
The subject project is located in the Batken region, which is in the south-west of Kyrgyzstan, and will
benefit more than 400,000 people by providing reliable electricity through the national grid. Based on 2010
national socio-economic data, a UNDP report in 2011 stated the income poverty rate in this region as 34
percent, which is higher than the national average. More than 75 percent of the population in the region
reside in rural areas.
It is expected that the energy independence resulting from the project will not only spur agricultural
and industrial growth, with visible impacts in the area of poverty alleviation, but will also have significant
social benefits in the areas of education and health, given that there will be uninterrupted electricity to
run essential social service functions. It will also help in achieving energy security to the region through
Kyrgyzstan’s own electricity network.
The project is consistent with the development priorities of the Government of Kyrgyzstan (GOK) and
National Electricity Grid of Kyrgyzstan (NEGK).These development priorities have been highlighted in the
National Power Program of Kyrgyzstan, which emphasized the need to further develop major segments
of the country’s infrastructure, including power transmission networks, to ensure smooth socio-economic
development of the country. Consequently, the project would support this development priority by
connecting the Batken region to the national electricity grid.
The total cost of the project is US$18.0 million. Of this amount, US$16.25 million will be contributed by
the ISFD, and US$1.75 million will be contributed by the National Electrical Grid of Kyrgyzstan.

10. Reconstruction of Adagali - Atakpame Road - Togo
This road section is located in the Plateaux Region, about 140 km north-west of the capital Lome. It is
running in a southwest-northeast direction cutting through a rolling terrain and longing a mountainous
chain. It is located in an area of great agricultural potential where agriculture constitutes the main activity
of about 80% of the population. About 40 villages/settlements are located along the stretch of the road
from Adagali to Atakpame. The population of the Plateaux Region was estimated at 1.28 million in 2010 or
about 23% of the Togolese population.
The reconstruction of the Adagali – Atakpame road would improve the level of service on a national road
that is narrow and in a very poor condition despite its strategic importance with respect to the socioeconomic potential of its densely populated zone of influence which is mainly agricultural. This road is
also strategic in the sense that it provides support to the main national road with potential national and
regional north-south traffic.
The road is expected to improve access to markets and stimulate the growth of economic activities,
especially in the villages which lie along the path of this road, and thereby contribute to the poverty
alleviation efforts in a region which has a very high level of poverty, as well as high unemployment. It will
also contribute to the achievement of the objectives of the Government’s medium-to-long-term strategy,
as articulated in the Strategy for Growth and Youth Employment 2013-2017.
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The total cost of the project is US$94.0 million. Of this amount, US$13.0 million will be contributed by the
ISFD, and US$25.0 million will be contributed by the Togolese Government, and the rest (US$56.0 million)
will be contributed by other co-financiers.
11. Grant for Dryland Development Project - Somalia
The agriculture sector, including livestock, crops, fisheries and natural resources is the primary and most
important source of livelihood and socio-economic growth for Somalia. The prolonged civil strife has
however, resulted in a breakdown of the national economy and a deterioration of traditional livelihood
systems. The country is in transition from conflict to post conflict situation. Hence, this grant assistance
project has been approved to contribute to the Government strategy of restoring basic social services
and rebuilding livelihood assets of the pastoralists and semi-pastoralists. It will mainly target basic social
and economic infrastructures, building livelihood assets and reducing vulnerability. This objective will be
achieved through: (a) strengthening the livestock and drylands farming system b)building value chains
activities, and (b) improving access to basic social services.
The project consist of the following components: (i) Improving livestock and drylands farming value chains;
(ii) improving access to basic social services; (iii) Building institutional capacity for sustainable project
management and implementation.
The total value of the ISFD Grant is US$5.0 million. It will also be leveraged by contributions from other cofinanciers, namely: Japan (US$1.0 million), Government of Somalia (US$0.12 million), and local community
(US$0.11 million).
12. Blindness Control Project in the Framework of the Alliance to Fight Avoidable
Blindness - Chad and Niger
More than 560,000 blind persons live in Chad and Niger combined and 50% of them are estimated to suffer
from cataract which is the leading cause of blindness in these countries. Although cataract is treatable, the
cataract surgery rate in these two countries are amongst the lowest in the world (respectively 176 and
335) and are far from the target rate of 1,000 set by Vision 2020 for Africa. In addition, in both countries,
there is a serious shortage of qualified medical staff to tackle the problem of blindness.
The overall objective of the project is to contribute to alleviating poverty in Chad and Niger by reducing
prevalence of blindness due to cataract and improving access to, and quality of, eye health care. More
specifically, the project aims at reducing the backlog of cataract blindness in Chad and Niger by restoring
the sight of 2,300 persons as well as improving the skills of the local eye health personnel in the Chad
and Niger. By increasing the access of the local population in Chad and Niger to eye care consultations
and cataract surgeries, the project will reduce the dependency of the cataract patients on their family and
community.
It is to be noted that the project will give priority to the implementation of blindness control campaigns in
rural areas where there is a lack of ophthalmologists and a shortage of health facilities. Through the
rural blindness control campaigns, the project will improve the access to eye health care for people living
in these remote areas and will spare the patients the cost of travelling to the city for treatment.
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Hands-on training during the campaigns is also the other main feature of the cataract treatment campaigns.
In this framework, the Alliance surgeons will use the most advanced techniques compatible with the local
context, such as the micro-incision. Mastering these techniques and using the equipment that goes with
them require great skill. In this regard, each surgical team includes a specialist dedicated to training local
ophthalmologists and technicians, not only on cataract surgery but also on the treatment of other eye
conditions like glaucoma and trachoma. This approach will contribute to developing the capacity of local
eye care personnel and improving the access to quality eye health care.
The ISFD will contribute US$250,000 towards this project by way of non-refundable Waqf grant assistance.
13. Prevention, Treatment and Social Reintegration of Women with Obstetric Fistula
Project - Uganda
The main objective of this project is to provide comprehensive care to 200 women suffering from the
maternal health disability, obstetric fistula (OF) in Eastern Uganda. The project will be implemented by
the local NGO TERREWODE which is one of the main stakeholders and a key partner with the Ugandan
government in providing OF services within the country.
Obstetric Fistula (OF) is a debilitating childbirth injury affecting more than 2 million women worldwide,
1/4th of which are located within IDB member countries. If a woman develops OF, she will not only
face physical complications but psychological, social and economic obstacles as well. This condition, which
affects mainly poor girls and women can be prevented and treated. The proposed project will help to
increase awareness on the condition and how it can be prevented, provide subsidized surgical repair, as
well as provide technical skills and economic support to patients to help them rebuild the lives and become
productive members of their community.
The project scope consists of (i) prevention activities focused on strengthening existing community
mechanisms to decrease stigma as well as the identification and referral of patients to OF repair services,
(ii) treatment activities focused on mobilizing local surgeons and health facilities and arranging repair
surgeries for the patients, (iii) rehabilitation activities focused on developing the livelihood skills of patients
and (iv) providing rehabilitation services to ensure that treated patients become social and economically
active once they return to their respective communities.
The project is in line with the MDGs 1, 3 and 5 and conforms to the Strategic Thrusts of the IDB Vision
1440H (2020G) related to poverty alleviation, promotion of health and women’s empowerment. It is also
in line with the IDB’s Comprehensive Human Development Strategy, as well as the mandate of the ISFD as
stipulated by the Third Extraordinary Session of the OIC Summit.
The total cost of this project is US$ 178,340 to which the ISFD will contribute US$130,000 by way of a
Waqf grant financing.
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ISFD Grant Assistance Policy
In order that the ISFD remains current and reflects a sound practice in fulfilment of its overarching
mission of sustainable poverty reduction through its operations, it has been deemed essential that the
ISFD should put in place a coherent policy framework for grant assistance to its member countries, while
ensuring the long-term viability and sustainability of the concessional financing of the Fund. Therefore,
the ISFD has developed a Grant Assistance Policy in 1434H (2013G) which was subsequently approved
by the Board of Directors.
In accordance with the ISFD Regulations, the objective of this policy and the Grant Assistance Program
in general is to enhance the member countries’ capacity to develop and implement different productive
and services projects and programs targeting the basic needs of the poorest segments of the population.
It also seeks to assist member countries in the formulation of poverty reduction strategies, policies and
programs, taking into account the success lessons and international experience gained in this area.
Following are the main features of this policy:
-

All IDB member countries may benefit from the ISFD grant assistance program. However, at least
80% of the Annual Grant Assistance Financing will be extended to the Least Developed Member
Countries (LDMCs) and the other member countries treated as such.

-

Grant assistance can be extended, at the request of the IDB Governor for the concerned country, to
non-sovereign entities and local civil society organizations if these societies are active in helping the
poor and marginalized groups in the development processes.

-

Grant assistance will be provided to eligible beneficiaries through non‑refundable financing from
ISFD Operations Budget.

-

Grants financing will be sourced from the net annual income of the ISFD in the previous year and
may not exceed 3.0% of that income, subject to the Board of Directors approval of the specific
amount to be sourced for each year. It can also be sourced from other resources external to the
ISFD under arrangements to be agreed upon by the Board of Directors as per Article 8.01 and 8.02
of the ISFD Regulations.

-

Financing through Grant Assistance may go up to US$0.4 million per operation and may not exceed
90% of the total cost of the project/program for which the grant is provided. However, if the Grant
operation is combined with an ISFD or IDB loan, the beneficiary country should contribute at least
50% of the total cost of the Grant Assistance.

-

For non-sovereign institutions, agencies/entities based in member countries, financing through Grant
Assistance may go up to US$100,000 per operation and may not exceed 75% of the total cost of the
project/program.

-

ISFD grant assistance can be extended to regional projects as per the existing IDB Guidelines and
operational procedures for such grants.

-

A portion of a Grant Assistance may be used for pilot-testing projects in accordance with the IDB
Operations/Technical Assistance Guidelines.
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ISFD Initiatives
Staff Messages

“In the last few years of its operations, the ISFD has contributed to
alleviating poverty by providing concessionary resources primarily
through the net income of its investments. In order to strengthen our
financing capacity, and to provide opportunities for development partners to join hands in fighting poverty, we recently launched the Poverty
Reduction Trust Funds Framework. This new initiative enables us to
launch joint funds with philanthropists, private corporations as well as
other development institutions where we identify areas of need and
design interventions to address them in close collaboration.We believe
this is a very innovative way of mobilizing additional resources for the
poor and there is tremendous opportunity for such partnerships to
make a very sizeable impact on those who truly need it.”
Ahmed Faruk Diken
Senior Trust Funds Specialist, ISFD

At ISFD, we are very keen to develop and operationalize high-impact
flagship programmes that will help reduce poverty in the IDB Member Countries. The Sustainable Village Programme (SVP), Renewable
Energy for Poverty Reduction (REPoR) and Save the Mothers (STM)
are some examples of our collaborative efforts with the sector departments in the IDB.
Shams ur Rehman Toor
Senior Portfolio Management Specialist

“In ISFD programmes and projects, one of the key considerations is to
find the right balance of infrastructure (the ‘hard’ components), services and capacity development (the ‘soft’ components) activities during
the design phases. This integrated approach builds in a strong sustainability element, while catering to the priority needs of the project
beneficiaries, especially in the key focus areas of Human Development
(incl. education, health, vocational training), Agriculture, Rural Development, Capacity Development and Women Empowerment.”
Mohamed Ishthiaq Akbar
Senior Programme Management Specialist, ISFD
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The 38th IDB Group Annual Meeting of the BOG was held in Dushanbe in the Republic of Tajikistan at Kokhi Somon Palace on 8-12 Rajab
1434H (18-22 May 2013G).

Activities of the ISFD Board of Governors
The 6th Annual Meeting of the ISFD BOG was held in Dushanbe in the Republic of Tajikista at Kokhi Somon
Palace on 12 Rajab 1434H (22 May 2013G), in conjunction with the 38th IDB Group Annual Meeting of the
BOG. The BOG approved all the recommendations presented to it by the Procedures Committee of the BOG
in connection with the ISFD, and adopted a total of six resolutions relating to those recommendations.
The BOG adopted the ISFD Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ending on
29 D. Hijjah 1433H (14 November 2012). It also deliberated on the progress of the Fund during 1433H and
commended the ISFD management for the results achieved during the year. While acknowledging the efforts
made in respect of resource mobilization, the BOG expressed concerns about the low levels of contributions
to the capital of the ISFD by member countries which constrain its operations.
Although the BOG had already adopted a resolution in its 4th Annual Meeting calling on member countries
to base their voluntary capital contributions to the ISFD on an average weighted criterion of three indicators:
a country’s real GDP, value of exports of goods and services, and the value of foreign exchange reserves – the
BOG was informed that no member country had yet decided to implement this landmark resolution.
In addition, the BOG was informed that some tangible progress was made in relation to the implementation
of its resolution calling on the member countries to take all measures to support the efforts of the ISFD in
resource mobilization, such as allocating a suitable Waqf (Trust) in favour of the ISFD which the ISFD can develop
to generate revenues that can enhance its resources. The resolution also stipulates that the allocated Waqf shall
be considered an addition to the financial contribution of the concerned member country to the capital of
the ISFD. At least 50% of the income generated from the investments of the Waqf will be used by the ISFD to
finance its projects in the concerned member country, and the remaining amount will be used to finance other
activities of the Fund.
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The BOG asked the management to continue its consultations with the member countries with a view to generate
enough commitment from member countries to make appropriate contributions which are commensurate with
their economic and financial abilities.
The BOG decided that the 7th Annual Meeting of the ISFD BOG would be held in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia on to
28 Sha’aban 1435H (corresponding to 26 June 2014). It also approved Messrs.’ Deloitte & Touché and Bakr
Abulkhair & Co. as auditors of the ISFD Financial Accounts in 1434H (2013G).
The Annual Meeting also afforded the opportunity to stage seminars, workshops and other forums to address
topical issues of interest to IDB member countries.

Activities of the ISFD Board of Directors
As per the regulations of the ISFD, the Board of Executive Directors of the IDB is the Board of Directors of the
ISFD (BOD) and chaired by the President of the IDB Group.
The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the activities of the Fund and for this purpose may exercise
all the powers delegated to it by the Board of Governors. The Board meets at least once every two months
and, among its main duties, is responsible for approving loan proposals, policies, the administrative budget,
setting the terms and conditions of financing and operational procedures, providing guidance on specific fields of
activity, and making decisions on strategic matters in accordance with the powers conferred on it by the ISFD
regulations. The Board has a Standing Committee (the Audit Committee) that reviews and discusses documents
that are subsequently submitted to the Board for consideration and approval.
In 1434H (2013G), the BOD held seven meetings during which it considered a number of items related to
projects financing and policy issues. The BOD considered seven ISFD Progress Reports during these meetings
highlighting the various activities carried out by the Fund during the year as well as areas for further actions and
improvement.
The Board approved 11 operations in addition to 3 operations approved by H.E. the IDB President under the
authority delegated to him by the BOD, all amounting to US$82.13 million for poverty reduction projects/
programs in 11 IDB member countries. As for the issue of low ISFD disbursements, the Board observed that
there is a critical need to make a crash program and practical solutions to deal with this issue.
The BOD also approved the Framework of the Trust Funds for Poverty Reduction to be established within
the ISFD. The Board commended the ISFD Management for developing this framework and advised its gradual
implementation in the context of co-financing ISFD’s programs. It also advised that for each individual proposed
Trust Fund that will be presented to the BOD, the ISFD should conduct a thorough cost benefit analysis and
exposure limits as part of the justification for the establishment of the Trust Fund.
The Board emphasized that combating poverty requires targeted interventions in the areas of social and human
development such as basic education, health services and enhancing capabilities, particularly for women and children,
empowering citizens, men and women equally, and providing the poor and vulnerable with social safety nets.
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The Board noted the significant improvement in the returns on the ISFD investments of its capital resources in
1433H (2012G).To improve the performance of the Fund’s investments, the Board approved the ISFD Investment
Policy which will guide the ISFD investment of its capital resources going forward. The Board also commended
the partnerships and networking relationships which the ISFD has so far achieved.
The BOD approved the ISFD Program Implementation and Administrative Expenses Budget for 1435H (2014G)
amounting to ID2.555 million (approximately US$3.945 million), of which ID1.61 million (approx. US$2.486
million) for program implementation and ID0.945 million (approx. US$1.459 million) for administrative expenses.
It also advised that the ISFD should consider optimizing its operational framework with a view to enhance the
speed of its projects’ approval and implementation.
The Board emphasized the need for an extensive resource mobilization campaign at the member countries’ level
to enhance the current level of contributions. In doing so, the Board adopted resolutions to enhance the process
of resource mobilization as follows:
i.

Calling upon the founding IDB members of the Fund who have not paid, or paid partially their announced
contributions, to fully pay their contributions without further delay.

ii. Calling upon the member countries that are capable and desirous of paying the full amount of their
contributions in one installment, or more than 50 per cent of their contributions as a first installment, to
do so in order to enhance the resource base of the Fund;
iii. Calling upon member countries that have not yet announced their contributions to do so as early as
possible and pay their contributions in a maximum of three equal installments starting within one year
from the date of announcing their contributions.

Reducing the Regular Meetings of the BOD
In order to further strengthen the corporate governance in the ISFD and allow more discussions of the Fund’s
activities, the Board decided to reduce the number of its regular meetings in a year from 7 (as per the current
practice) to 4. It also decided that the Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors of ISFD to alternate with
the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Islamic Corporation for the Insurance of Investment and Export
Credit (ICIEC) and to delegate the authority to the IDB Board of Executive Directors to approve the ISFD
Programs/Projects when ISFD Board is not in session.

Contributions to the ISFD Capital
As of end-1434H (2013G), 44 IDB member countries and the IDB have announced their contributions to
the Fund (see Annex I). Of the participant countries, 25 fully paid their contributions. Thirteen IDB member
countries are yet to announce their contributions to the capital of the Fund. The Board considered the low
level of announced contributions to the ISFD capital with no additions in 1434H (2013G) and welcomed the full
payment of the announced contributions by Kuwait (US$300.0 million).
The Board emphasized the need to implement the previous ISFD BOG Resolutions on Resource Mobilization
for the Fund, in particular addressing the issue of lack of response by some member countries to basing their
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contributions on the approved criteria for such contributions and also seeking to implement the Waqf allocation
for the ISFD Resolution. The Board also emphasized that the Fund should be visible enough and prominent in
media and in other channels of communications especially when it comes to co-financed projects, which could
also help mobilize more resources. In this regard, the Board also underlined the importance of finalizing the ISFD
communication strategy.

ISFD Management
The current ISFD organization structure is composed of a Director’s front office and two Divisions: the Strategy
& Program Management Division and the Advocacy & Special Programs Division.The current Director of the ISFD
is Dr. Bashir Omar Mohammed Fadlalla. Dr. Mohamed Safiullah Munsoor is heading the Program Management
Division and Dr. Bashir Omar Mohammed Fadlalla is heading the Advocacy & Resource Mobilization Division in
an acting capacity. Currently, the Fund’s staffing is composed of 10 professionals and 5 support staff.

ISFD Knowledge Events
Training Course on “Impact Evaluation of Development Programs”
The ISFD, in collaboration with the Abdul Latif Jameel Poverty Action Lab (J-PAL), Massachusetts Institute of
Technology (MIT), USA organized a high-level training course for IDB Group staff on Impact Evaluation of
Development Programmes, with support from the Operations Policy and Services Department and the Group
Operations Evaluation Department
The event, which was held from 8 to 12 June 2013 at the IDB HQ, began with a town hall meeting that
brought together the top management of the IDB,The Managing Director of the Abdul Latif Jameel Group (ALJ)
Community Initiatives, Senior Management of J-PAL and staff of the IDB.
About 40 staff from different departments/entities of the IDB Group took part in the training, which covered
different impact evaluation techniques including the technique of Randomized Controlled Trials (RCTs). Very
positive feedback was obtained from the evaluation of the training by the participants.
Workshop on “Innovative Solutions to Poverty Reduction and Empowerment of the
Poor”
The ISFD and the Statistical, Economic and Social Research and Training Centre for Islamic Countries (SESRIC),
and the Turkish Cooperation and Coordination Agency (TIKA) had partnered to organize a workshop entitled
“Innovative Solutions to Poverty Reduction and Empowerment of the Poor” at the Headquarters of SESRIC in
Ankara, Turkey, on 26-28 June 2013. The workshop brought together researchers, academicians, policy-makers,
and practitioners working in the area of poverty alleviation.
The main objectives of the workshop were to showcase proven poverty reduction solutions which could be
scaled-up and replicated in the OIC countries, and to create profound partnerships between policy-makers,
academicians and practitioners in order to facilitate the development of a relevant future course for addressing
poverty in these countries. The workshop was organized around four themes, namely: (i) Agriculture and Food
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Security; (ii) Financial Inclusion, Entrepreneurship and Business Development; (iii) Infrastructure Development
for the Poor; and (iv) Human Development.
ISFD Participation in the Urban Poverty Index (UPI) Project Workshop
The ISFD participated in a workshop in Khartoum, Sudan, on 6-7 July 2013, on an Urban Poverty Index (UPI)
Project which has been developed by the Arab Urban Development Institute (AUDI) in Riyadh and the Economic
and Social Commission for West Asia (ESCWA). The study makes a substantive addition to measurement of
Urban Poverty and developed a UPI methodology which can be quite effective in measuring urban poverty and
acts a guide for poverty reduction policies in urban areas.
The new approach is both quantitative and qualitative and moves away from the common approach to measuring
poverty is quantitative, where money-metric measures use income or consumption to determine whether
the household can afford to purchase a representative basket of basic goods, which can underestimate urban
poverty, into one which is based on the Unsatisfied Basic Needs in all facets of poverty. It is an approach that
defines a minimum threshold for several dimensions of poverty and categorizes households on the basis of their
access to a set of basic needs. These needs include services such as health and education, adequate housing,
access to infrastructure, etc. If a household in deficient in one of these categories, they are classified as having
unsatisfied basic needs.
AUDI has subsequently made a presentation on the new methodology at the IDB Headquarters in August 2013
with a view to share knowledge and explore the possibility of benefiting from the new UPI in the ISFD programs
in member countries.
Oxford Poverty and Human Development Initiative (OPHI)
In its efforts to forge strategic partnerships with centres of excellence in the area of poverty reduction, the ISFD
hosted a delegation from the Oxford Poverty and Human Development Initiative (OPHI), University of Oxford,
UK, on October 01-03, 2013. The delegation was headed by Dr. Sabina Alkire, Director of OPHI. The OPHI visit
was organized in conjunction with the “International Day for the Eradication of Poverty” which is observed on
October 17 every year. During the OPHI visit, the following key events were organized at the IDB HQ:
-

Town Hall Session on “Multidimensional Poverty Index: Implications for IDB Member Countries” (October
01, 2013)

-

Workshop on “Multidimensional Poverty: Measurement and Eradication” (October 02-03, 2013)

-

Both of these events were well received. About 120 professionals attended the Town Hall Meeting and 40
IDB professionals participated in the two-day long workshop.

-

During the visit, a number of discussions were held to explore the possibilities of collaboration between
the two institutions. Based on the discussions, the following areas of cooperation were agreed between
the two institutions:
i.
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ii.

Carrying MPI-based analyses during the Impact Evaluation study of a Sustainable Villages Project
(SVP)

iii.

Conducting Joint work on a Maqasid Al Shariah-based Index for measuring development and wellbeing

Receiving a delegation from Oxfam, UK
A delegation from the Oxfam, UK, visited the IDB-HQ on November 20, 2013 to discuss strategic opportunities
for collaboration between the two institutions. The delegation was headed by Mr. Nicholas Collof, Director of
Innovation. During the visit of the delegation, a Town Hall session was organized on the topic of “Monitoring and
Evaluation for Development Projects”. During the partnership meeting, a number of potential areas of mutual
cooperation were highlighted. These include:
-

A five-day training program on Monitoring and Evaluation offered by the Oxfam at the IDB-HQ

-

Opportunities of secondment for the professional staff from both organizations

-

Participation in various events organized by the two institutions

-

Co-financing of projects, where possible

-

Joint resource mobilization campaigns, especially for ISFD flagship programmes

-

Considering the possibility of creating a joint fund to support youth entrepreneurship and employment

ISFD Participation in the World Innovation Forum
As part of the ISFD advocacy and outreach efforts, the Fund took part in the World Innovation Forum (WIF)
which was convened in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, November 2012. The forum gave the ISFD the opportunity to
showcase some of its projects such as: the community driven development project in Indonesia, environmentally
friendly charcoal production technology in Uganda, renewable energy for the poor project and Friendship
Carrefour hospital Transfer in Bangladesh. The event also exposed ISFD and its projects to potential research
and business opportunities in various areas including biotechnology, nanotechnology and indigenous knowledge.
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H.E.Thomas Yayi Boni, President of the Republic of Benin, receiving the Director of the ISFD, Dr. Bashir Omar Fadlalla, and Dr. Omar Aliu Touray,
ISFD Senior Communication and Outreach Specialist, on the occasion of the handing over of a 10,000 sq. m. plot of land in a prime area in the
capital city of Benin, Cotonou, in response to the ISFD Board of Governors’ Resolution No. ISFD/BG/3-433.

Townhall and training course was conducted by the ISFD in collabration with Abdul Latif Jameel Poverty Action Lab (J-PAL) in June 2013
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Resources of the ISFD
The ISFD has an approved target capital of US$10.0 billion. The position of capital subscriptions as at the end of
1434H (2013G) is shown in Annex I. These are composed of voluntary contributions by member countries of
the IDB, and the IDB. The Fund has no callable capital.
Total pledges as at the end of 1434H (2013G) stood at US$2.68 billion, composed of US$1.68 billion committed
by 44 IDB member countries, and US$1.0 billion committed by the IDB.The biggest pledges were made by Saudi
Arabia (US$1.0 billion), Kuwait (US$300.0 million), and Iran (US$100.0 million). No new pledges were made
towards the ISFD Capital in 1434H (2013G).
Paid-in capital is US$2.21 billion as at the end of 1434H (2013G) compared to US$2.17 billion in 1433H
(2012G). Out of the cumulative payments, as of end-1434H (2013G), an amount of US$1.61 billion was paid by
member countries and US$0.60 billion by the IDB. In 1434H, several member countries made payment, including
Kuwait (US$ 300 million), Egypt (US$5 million), Indonesia (US$2.4 million), Kazakhstan (US$5 million), Tunisia
(US$5 million), and Bangladesh (US$ 1 million).
The Fund has separate accounts and records of its capital resources and operations. All operations and
investments activities of the Fund are conducted in conformity with Shariah (Islamic law) governing Islamic
Awqaf (Trusts).Although the accounts of the Fund are kept in US dollars, the ISFD Regulations stipulate that they
can be kept in any currency, currencies, or unit of account that the Board of Directors of the Fund may deem
appropriate. As an interim measure, the BOD decided to use the US dollar as a unit of account of the Fund since
its capital is denominated in US dollars. The Fund’s accounts are kept by the IDB Finance Control Department
and its capital resources are invested by the Treasury and Investments Departments of the IDB..

Operations Financing
The ISFD approvals in 1434H (2013G) amounted to US$82.13 million, for 14 operations in 11 IDB member
countries. These operations were financed from the ISFD income and allocation of income from the IDB Waqf
Fund for ISFD Grant Assistance operations, which amounted to US$5.38 million. The terms and conditions
applied to the Fund’s operations were set in a manner to ensure that financing is provided on concessional terms
to the member countries while preserving the long-term sustainability of the Fund.

Income
The ISFD liquid funds are composed of paid-in contributions from member countries and the IDB in addition to
the unutilized earnings of the Fund. These funds were invested in commodity Murabaha and short-term Shariah
compatible placements in 1434H (2013G). All investments were made in US dollar and Euro.
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ISFD operating income in 1434H (2013G) was US$29.49 million, compared to US$62.36 million in 1433H
(2012G). It is composed mainly of income from Commodity placements which dominated the investment classes
during the year (US$20.73), Sukuk –Islamic bonds– (US$6.76 million), and Murabaha (US$4.9 million). The
operating income achieved in 1434H was down by 52.7% of the income achieved in the previous year, despite
the larger size of investments in 1434H (2013G). This was mainly because of the losses made on the unrealized
fair value of Sukuk investments in 1434H, amounting to US$18.62 million, compared to an appreciation of
US$14.07 million achieved in 1433H. On the other hand, returns of investments in Murabaha were strong 12.41%. However, this had minimal impact on the portfolio return since it consisted only 4.41% of the overall
investment portfolio.
Net income for 1434H (2013G) was US$26.48 million, a decrease by 55.7% from the US$59,86 million profit
achieved in 1433H (2011G). Given the fact that the Fund’s net assets had increased only by 23.9% in the course
of 1434H, this shows a significant fall of the returns on the Fund’s investments of its capital resources and
unutilized retained earnings during the year.

Disbursements
Disbursements for operations picked up significantly in 1434H, registering US$34.68 million, compared to
US$12.77 million in the year before. This is because of the increasing number of approved ISFD projects over
the past four years which have fulfilled the set disbursement criteria.

Management of Liquid Funds
The ISFD is required to invest its resources which will not be immediately required for financing its operations.
As a Waqf (i.e. Trust), paid-in capital would not be available for utilization in the Fund’s operational activities.
Therefore, to maximize the income of the Fund, liquidity would be maintained only to the extent that it can meet
the Fund’s current cash requirements and undisbursed commitments. The ISFD liquid assets are invested based
on guidelines which are issued by the IDB Risk Management Department. In the meantime, the ISFD is in the
process of finalizing an Investment Policy to guide the short- and long-term investment of its capital resources.
ISFD Key Financial Indicators (in US$m)
1429H

1430H

1431H

1432H

1433H

1434H

2,610.0

2,629.0

2,629.0

2.639.36

2,679.36

2,679,360

Capital Contributions: Payments

538.2

1,060.7

1,531.8

1,633.8

1,743.22

2,166,651

Contributions received during the year
From member countries

438.2

422.5

371.1

1.02

9.45

323.43

Contributions received during the year
From the IDB

100

100

100

100

100

100

Gross Income

23.54

11.23

20.02

31.88

62.36

29.49

Net Income

21.88

2.568

18.62

30.07

59.86

26.48

Capital Contributions: Commitments
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Annexes

ANNEX-1 - ISFD Capital Contributions
As at 29 D. Hijjah 1434H (24 October 2013)
Amounts in USD
No

Countries

Payment

Albania

10,000

0

2

Algeria

50,000,000

50,000,000

3

Azerbaijan

4

Bahrain

5
6

300,000

424,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

Bangladesh

13,000,000

3,000,000

Benin

12,250,000

0

7

Brunei

2,000,000

2,000,000

8

Burkina Faso

2,200,000

2,238,000

9

Cameroun

2,000,000

2,000,000

10

Chad

2,000,000

0

11

Cote d›Ivoire

12

Egypt

5,000,000

0

10,000,000

10,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

13

Gabon

14

Gambia

No commitment

12,000

15

Guinea

2,000,000

2,000,000

16

Indonesia

17

Iran

10,000,000

2,440,000

100,000,000

65,000,000

18

Iraq

1,000,000

1,000,000

19

Jordan

3,000,000

3,000,000

20

Kazakhstan

21

Kuwait

11,000,000.00

11,000,000

300,000,000

300,000,000

22

Lebanon

1,000,000

1,000,000

23

Malaysia

20,000,000

20,000,000

24

Mali

4,000,000

0

25

Mauritania

5,000,000

0

26

Morocco

5,000,000

5,000,000

27

Mozambique

200,000

200,000

28

Niger

2,000,000

0

29

Nigeria

2,000,000

2,000,000

30

Oman

31

Pakistan

32

Palestine

33

Qatar

34

Saudi Arabia

35

Senegal

36

Sierra Leone

37

Sudan

38

Suriname

39

Syria

5,000,000

5,000,000

10,000,000

5,116,000

500,000

186,000

50,000,000

50,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

10,000,000

0

1,000,000

300,000

15,000,000

944,000

500,000

500,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

40

Togo

1,000,000

1,000,000

41

Tunisia

5,000,000

5,000,000
5,000,000

42

Turkey

5,000,000

43

Uganda

100,000

0

44

Uzbekistan

300,000

300,000

45

Yemen Republic

46

Islamic Development Bank

Grand Total

46

Commitments
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3,000,000

3,000,000

1,000,000,000

600,000,000

2,679,360,000

2,166,651,000

Auditor’s Report

Annex II: ISFD Projects
(1434H – 2013G)
(Amounts in USD million)

Project

Country

Amount

IDB Cont.

Total Cost

Women Entrepreneurship Development and Youth
Employment Support - Loan

Senegal

5

15

22.5

The Millennium Villages Project (MVP) Phase-II- Loan-

Uganda

4

11.49

5.75

Vocational Literacy Program for Poverty Reduction
(VOLIP) - Loan

Morocco

7.5

0

8.75

Integrated Community Driven Development (ICDD)
Phase III Project- Loan

Indonesia

10

195.0

254.01

Uganda

5

15.0

24.9

Bilingual Lower Secondary Education Development
Project- Loan

Chad

4

10.0

15.65

Vocational Literacy Program for Poverty Reduction
(VOLIP) - Loan

Egypt

8

0

9.0

Access to Energy for Rural Communities Project

Togo

4

7.0

18.9

Kyrgyzstan

16.25

0

18.0

Togo

13.0

0

94.0

Somalia

5.0

0

6.23

Chad and
Niger

0.25

0

0.35

Uganda

0.13

0.178

82.13

478.218

Dry-land Integrated Development Project- Loan

Improvement of Electricity Supply in Arka Area of Batken
Region Project
Reconstruction of Adagali — Atakpame Road,
Grant for Dryland Development Project
Blindness Control Project in the Framework of the
Alliance to Fight Avoidable Blindness Prevention, Treatment and Social Reintegration of Women
with Obstetric Fistula Project
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For the year 1434H
(29 Dhul Hijjah 1434H (03 November 2013)
and
Independent Joint Auditors’ Report

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Al Fozan & Al Sadhan

P.O. Box 16415
Jeddah 21464
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

P. O. Box 55078
Jeddah 21534
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Your Excellencies the Chairman and Members of the Board of Governors
Islamic Development Bank,
Jeddah, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of The Islamic Solidarity Fund for Development (the “Fund”) of
the Islamic Development Bank as of Dhul Hijjah 29, 1434H (November 3, 2013) and the related statements of income, cash flows
and changes in net assets for the year then ended and the attached notes from 1 to 16 which form an integral part of the financial
statements.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the Financial
Accounting Standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI) and to operate in
accordance with Islamic Shari’ah rules and principles and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Auditing Standards for Islamic Financial Institutions issued by the AAOIFI and International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as at Dhul Hijjah 29, 1434H
(November 3, 2013), and the results of its operations, its cash flows and changes in net assets for the year then ended in accordance
with the Financial Accounting Standards issued by the AAOIFI for Islamic Financial Institutions and the Shari’ah rules and principles as
determined by the Shari’ah Committee of the Fund.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

KPMG Al Fozan & Al Sadhan

Ali A. AlOtaibi
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 379

Ebrahim Oboud Baeshen
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 382
13 Jumada-I, 1434H
25 March 2013
Jeddah
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ISLAMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK
THE ISLAMIC SOLIDARITY FUND FOR DEVELOPMENT
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of 29 Dhul Hijjah 1434H (03 November 2013)
(All amounts in thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise stated)

Notes
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Commodity placements through banks
Murabaha financing, net
Investments in Sukuk
Investments in equity capital
Investment in Ijarah
Qurood
Accrued income and other assets

4
5
6
7

8

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

9

NET ASSETS
REPRESENTED BY:
Fund resources
Retained earnings

1

1434H

1433H

270,096
893,574
163,405
880,902
8,533
20,000
58,606
45,319

238,279
892,560
59,412
603,502
20,000
23,930
43,795

2,340,435

1,881,478

10,396

1,349

2,330,039

1,880,129

2,166,651
163,388

1,743,220
136,909

2,330,039

1,880,129

The accompanying notes from 1 to 16
form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ISLAMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK
THE ISLAMIC SOLIDARITY FUND FOR DEVELOPMENT
INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 29 Dhul Hijjah 1434H (03 November 2013)
(All amounts in thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise stated)

Notes
INCOME FROM:
Commodity placements through banks
Murabaha financing
Investments in Sukuk, net
Investments in equity capital
Qurood service fees
Investment in Ijarah
Other income

Employee related expenses
General and administrative expenses
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain
Murabaha based cross currency profit rate swaps
Surplus for the year

7

8

1434H

14,964
4,934
6,758
52
1,732
1,054
29,494

20,727
1,616
39,998
15
62,356

(2,057)
(842)
(168)
52

(1,755)
(1,015)
250
-

26,479

59,836

The accompanying notes from 1 to 16 form
an integral part of these financial statements.
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ISLAMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK
THE ISLAMIC SOLIDARITY FUND FOR DEVELOPMENT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 29 Dhul Hijjah 1434H (03 November 2013)
(All amounts in thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise stated)

Notes

1434H

1433H

Cash flow from operations

26,479

59,836

18,621
(1,537)

(14,068)
-

(34,676)
(1,524)
9,047
16,410

(12,769)
34,148
(60,379)
6,768

(1,014)
(103,993)
(453,791)
(8,533)
159,307
(408,024)

211,060
(59,412)
(261,267)
41,300
(68,319)

423,431

109,445

31,817
238,279

47,894
190,385

270,096

238,279

Surplus for the year
Adjustment to reconcile surplus for the year to
net cash from operating activities:

Unrealized fair value losses / (gains) on investments in
Sukuk
Unrealized foreign exchange gain

7
7

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Qurood
Accrued income and other assets
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Net cash generated from operating activities
Investing activities

Commodity placements through banks
Murabaha financing, net
Investments in Sukuk
Investments in equity capital
Proceeds from redemption of investments in Sukuk

7
7

Net cash utilized in investing activities
Financing activity

1

Contributions received
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

4

The accompanying notes from 1 to 16 form
an integral part of these financial statements.
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ISLAMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK
THE ISLAMIC SOLIDARITY FUND FOR DEVELOPMENT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the year ended 29 Dhul Hijjah 1434H (03 November 2013)
(All amounts in thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise stated)

Fund resources

Retained
earnings

Balance at 1 Muharram 1433H
Contributions received during the year
Surplus for the year

1,633,775
109,445
-

77,073
59,836

1,710,848
109,445
59,836

Balance at 29 Dhul Hijjah 1433H
Contributions received during the year
Surplus for the year

1,743,220
423,431
-

136,909
26,479

1,880,129
423,431
26,479

2,166,651

163,388

2,330,039

Balance at 29 Dhul Hijjah 1434H

The accompanying notes from 1 to 16 form
an integral part of these financial statements.
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ISLAMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK
THE ISLAMIC SOLIDARITY FUND FOR DEVELOPMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 29 Dhul Hijjah 1434H (03 November 2013)
(All amounts in thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise stated)

1.

INCORPORATION, ACTIVITIES AND OTHER
The Islamic Solidarity Fund for Development (the “Fund”) was established pursuant to the decision
taken at the Third Extraordinary session of the Organization of Islamic Cooperation (“OIC”)
Islamic Summit Conference in Makkah on 5 and 6 Dhul Qadah 1426H (corresponding to 7 and
8 December 2006). The Fund carries out its business activities through the Islamic Development
Bank (“IDB” or the “Bank”) headquarters in Jeddah, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and regional offices in
Morocco, Malaysia, Kazakhstan and Senegal.
The purpose of the Fund is to finance different productive and service projects and programs that
help in reducing poverty in member countries of the OIC in accordance with its Regulations. The
Fund was officially launched during the 32nd meeting of the IDB’s Board of Governors (“BoG”),
held on 12 and 13 Jumad Awwal 1428H (corresponding to 29 and 30 May 2007) in Dakar, Senegal
through adoption of the BoG resolution no. BG/5-428.
The target principal amount of the Fund is United States Dollars (“USD”) 10 billion. The principal
amount shall consist of contributions from IDB and institutions of member countries. IDB has
committed to contribute USD 1 billion, payable in 10 annual installments of USD 100 million each.
The total contributions received as at 29 Dhul Hijjah 1434H amount to USD 2.17 billion (1433H:
USD 1.74 billion).
The Fund is administered by a Board of Directors of the Fund.The President of IDB is the ex-officio
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Fund.
The resources of the Fund available for utilization in its activities consist of:
1. income from the Waqf (Fund);
2. funds derived from operations or otherwise accruing to the Fund; and
3. other resources received by the Fund.
All dealings and activities of the Fund shall be in conformity with Islamic Shari’ah.The Fund’s financial
year is the lunar Hijra year.
As a Fund of IDB, which is a multilateral development Bank, the Fund is not subject to any local or
foreign external regulatory authority.
The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Executive Directors on ----- Rabi Thani 1435H (--- 2014).
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of preparation
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards
issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (“AAOIFI”)
and the Shari’ah rules and principles as determined by the Shari’ah Committee of IDB. For
matters which are not covered by AAOIFI standards, the Fund follows the relevant International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB).
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
following items in the statement of financial position:
•

Investments in equity capital measured at fair value through equity;

•

Investments in Sukuk which are measured at fair value through income statement; and

•

Murabaha based cross currency and profit rate swaps.

b) Critical accounting judgments and estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Fund’s accounting policies.
Such estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including obtaining professional advices and expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Significant areas where
management has used estimates, assumptions or exercised judgments are as follows:
Provision for impairment of financial assets:
The Fund exercises judgment in the estimation of provision for impairment of financial assets.
The methodology for the estimation of the provision is set out in note 2(l). For investments
in equity capital, the determination of whether a reduction in fair value compared to cost is
significant or prolonged requires the exercise of judgment.
c) Foreign currency translations
(i)

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in thousands of United States Dollars (USD) which is
the functional and presentation currency of the Fund.
(ii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into USD using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the year-end exchange rates are recognized in the income statement.
Non-monitory items measured at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are
translated with the exchange rate at the date of initial recognition.
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d) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances, and placements with banks having a maturity
of three months or less at the date of placement.
e) Commodity placements through banks
Commodity placements are made through banks and are utilized in the purchase and sale
of commodities at fixed profit. The buying and selling of commodities is limited by the terms
of agreement between the Fund and the other Islamic and conventional financial institutions.
Commodity placements are initially recorded at cost including acquisition charges associated
with the placements and subsequently measured at cost less any provision for impairment.
f) Murabaha Financing
Murabaha financing is an agreement whereby the Fund sells to a customer a commodity or
an asset, which the Fund has purchased and acquired based on a promise received from the
customer to buy. The selling price comprises the cost plus an agreed profit margin.
Amounts receivable from Murabaha financing are stated at the cost of goods sold or
disbursements made to the beneficiaries plus income recognized by the Fund to the date of the
statement of financial position, less repayments received and provision for impairment.
g) Investments in Sukuk
Debt-type instruments
Investments in Sukuk are classified as investments at fair value through the income statement.
These investments are initially recognized at fair value at the date the contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period with
the resulting gain or loss recognized in the income statement. Transaction costs are expensed
immediately on the date the contract is entered into.
h) Investments in equity capital
Equity-type instruments
Investments in equity capital are equity-type instruments and are intended to be held for a longterm period, and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in prices. Initially and
subsequently such investments are measured at fair value, and any unrealized gains arising from
the change in their fair value are recognized directly in the fair value reserve in the statement
of changes in net assets until the investment is derecognized or determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recorded under the statement of changes in
net assets is recognized in the income statement. Investments in equity capital whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost, less provision for any impairment in the value
of such investments.
i) Investment in Ijarah
Investment in Ijarah is measured at cost less provision for any impairment in the value of such
investments.
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j) Qurood
Qurood is recognized when cash is disbursed to the borrowers. Amounts receivable from
Qurood represent amounts disbursed in respect of projects plus the Qurood service fees
due, less repayments received relating to the outstanding capital portion of the Qurood as
determined according to the Qurood agreements and provision for impairment.
k) Murabaha based cross currency and profit rate swaps
The Fund uses Murabaha based cross-currency and profit rate swaps for asset/liability
management and hedging purposes to modify mark-up rate or currency characteristics of the
Sukuk issued and financing extended. Murabaha based cross currency and profit rate swaps are
treated as held-for-trading.
These instruments are initially recognized at fair value at the date the contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period with
the resulting gain or loss recognized in the income statement. Murabaha based cross currency
or profit rate swap or with positive fair values are recognized within other assets and those with
negative fair values are recognized within other liabilities.
l) Revenue recognition
Commodity placements through banks
Income from placements through banks is recognized on a time apportionment basis over the
period from the actual disbursement of funds to the date of maturity.
Murabaha financing
Income from Murabaha financing is accrued on a time apportionment basis over the period from
the date of the actual disbursement of funds to the scheduled repayment date of installments.
Investments in Sukuk
Income from investments in Sukuk is accrued on a time apportionment basis using the rate of
return advised by the issuing entities. For income recognized due to the re-measurement of
Sukuk at fair values, please see note 2(g).
Investments in equity capital
Dividend income from investments in equity capital are recognized when the right to receive
the payments is established.
Qurood service fees
Income from Qurood service fees is accrued according to the service fee repayment schedule
appended to the Qurood agreement.
Investment in Ijarah
Income from investment in Ijarah is allocated proportionately in the financial periods over the
lease term.
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m) Impairment of financial assets
Operational assets
The Fund determines the provision for impairment losses based on an assessment of incurred
losses. An assessment is made at each financial position date to determine whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets may be impaired. The
impairment loss results from the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the
net present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the implicit rate of return
from the financial asset. The impairment provision is periodically adjusted based on a review of
the prevailing circumstances.
Impairment losses are adjusted through the use of an allowance account. When a financial
asset is not considered recoverable, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written-off are credited to the income statement.
Other financial assets
The amount of the impairment losses for other financial assets is calculated as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and its estimated fair value.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When a financial asset is not considered recoverable, the asset is written off against the allowance
account and any excess loss is recognised in the income statement. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written-off are credited to the Fund’s income statement.
n) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and the Bank intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
o) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when a reliable estimate can be made by the Fund for a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is more likely than not that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation.
p) Zakat and tax
The Fund is considered a part of Bait-ul-Mal (public money) and it is not subject to Zakat or tax.

3.

SHARI’AH COMMITTEE
The Fund’s business activities are subject to the supervision of a Shari’ah Committee consisting
of members appointed by the IDB’s General Assembly. IDB Group’s Shari’ah Committee was
established pursuant to the IDB’s Board Resolution No.BED/24/11/421/(198)/138. Members of the
Shari’ah Committee of IDB Group are appointed for the period of 3 years renewable.
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The Committee has the following functions:
i. to consider all matters that are referred to it of transactions and products introduced by IDB
and its managed entities for use for the first time and rule on its conformity with the principles
of the Shari’ah, and to lay down the basic principles for the drafting of related contracts and
other documents;
ii. to give its opinion on the Shari’ah alternatives to conventional products which IDB and its
managed entities intends to use, and to lay down the basic principles for the drafting of related
contracts and other documents, and to contribute to its development with a view to enhancing
the IDB’s experience in this regard;
iii. to respond to the questions, enquiries and explications referred to it by the Board of Executive
Directors or the management of IDB including the Fund;
iv. to contribute to IDB’s programme for enhancing the awareness of its and Fund’s staff members
of Islamic banking and to deepen their understanding of the fundamentals, principles, rules and
values relative to Islamic financial transactions; and
v. To submit to the Board of Executive Directors a comprehensive report showing the measure of
IDB’s commitment to principles of Shari’ah in the light of the opinions and directions given and
the transactions reviewed.

4.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprise the following:

Cash at banks
Commodity placements through banks

Note

1434H

5

6,123
263,973
270,096

1433H
2,635
235,644
238,279

Commodity placements through banks comprise those placements having a maturity of three
months or less at the date of placement. Bank accounts are in the name of IDB and are managed by
IDB for the beneficial interest of the Fund.

5.

COMMODITY PLACEMENTS THROUGH BANKS
Commodity placements through banks at the end of the year are comprised of the following:
Note
Commodity placements through banks
Less: Commodity placement with maturity of
three months or less at the date of placement
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1434H

1433H

1,157,547

1,128,204

(263,973)
893,574

(235,644)
892,560
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6.

MURABAHA FINANCING, NET
Murabaha financing at the end of the year is comprised of the following:
1434H
Gross amounts receivables
Less: unearned income

166,603
(3,198)
163,405

1433H
60,974
(1,562)
59,412

All goods purchased for resale under Murabaha financing are made on the basis of specific purchase
for resale to the subsequent customer. The promise of the customer is considered to be binding.
Consequently, any loss suffered by the Fund as a result of default by the customer prior to the sale
of goods would be made good by the customer. The Fund’s foreign trade operations are managed
by The International Islamic Trade Finance Corporation (“ITFC”), an affiliated entity, for which
the ITFC charges a Mudarib fee. The Mudarib fee for the year ended 29 Dhul Hijjah 1434H was
USD 734 thousand (1433H: USD 226 thousand) which has been netted off from the income from
Murabaha financing.

7.

INVESTMENTS IN SUKUK
Investments in Sukuk certificates represent Sukuk issued by various governments, financial
institutions and certain other entities. Investments in Sukuk at the end of the year comprise of the
following:
1434H
Government
Financial institutions
Other entities

434,558
355,516
90,828
880,902

1433H
320,864
248,746
33,892
603,502

The movement in investments in Sukuk is summarized as follows:
1434H
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Sales/redemptions during the year
Unrealized fair value (losses)/gains
Unrealized foreign exchange gain
Balance at the end of the year

1433H

603,502
453,791
(159,307)
(18,621)
1,537
880,902

369,467
261,267
(41,300)
14,068
603,502

1434H
23,460
1,919
(18,621)
6,758

1433H
16,567
9,363
14,068
39,998

The details of income from investments in Sukuk is as follows:
Coupon income from investments in Sukuk
Realized gains
Unrealized fair value (losses) / gains
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8.

ACCRUED INCOME AND OTHER ASSETS
Accrued income and other assets at the end of the year comprise of the following:

Due from related parties
Accrued income
Murabaha based cross currency
and profit rate swap
Other

Note

1434H

1433H

10

33,077
12,169

31,930
11,834

52
21
45,319

31
43,795

The ISFD has entered into the following Murabaha based cross currency and profit rate swaps with
financial institution:
a) Murabaha based cross currency and profit rate swap:
The ISFD has invested Malaysian Ringgit (MYR) Sukuk amounting to USD 250 million in IDB MYR
Sukuk issued on 30 July 2013. In order to provide protection against exchange rate fluctuations
between the MYR and USD and the profit receipts under the Sukuk investment, the ISFD entered
into cross currency and profit rate swaps for the contract amount of MYR 250 million to swap
principal amount to USD 77.9 million. Under the arrangement, the Bank shall swap profit rate in
MYR with profit rates in USD with the counterparty.
For Murabaha based cross currency and profit rate swaps, the counter parties will act as an agent of
the Fund to buy and sell Shari’ah compliant assets for immediate delivery. Under these arrangements
Murabaha generates fixed payments (comprising both a cost price and a fixed rate profit mark-up)
or vice versa. Corresponding Reverse Murabaha contracts generates the floating leg payments (the
cost price is fixed but the profit rate mark-up is floating) or vice versa.
The table below shows the positive fair values of Murabaha based cross currency and profit rate
swaps and together with the cost price of Murabaha and Reverse Murabaha transaction on net
basis.
1434H

Contract amount
Positive fair Negative
value
fair value

Murabaha based cross
currency and profit rate
swaps

Total

1-3 years

3-5 years

Over 5
years

77,892

-

77,892

-

52

-

Positive
fair value

Negative
fair value

Total

1-3 years

3-5 years

Over 5
years

-

-

-

-

-

-

1433H

Contract amount

Murabaha based cross
currency and profit rate
swaps
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9.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses and other liabilities at the end of the year comprise of the following:

Due to related parties
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Note

1434H

10

9,801
595
10,396

1433H
663
686
1,349

10. RELATED PARTY MATTERS
The Fund is managed by the IDB and its transactions are done through the IDB and its related
entities. Principal arrangements related to commodity placements, Murabaha investments,
investment in Sukuk, investment in equity capital and investments in Ijarah are between IDB and its
related entities and counter parties. ISFD participates in such arrangements with IDB and its related
entities. The balances arising from such transaction are as follows:
(i) Due from related parties - entities related to IDB Group
1434H

1433H

33,024

29,090

IDB - Medical Fund

-

1,920

IDB - Pension Fund

-

2

32

49

-

509

IDB - Special Assistance Fund

Awqaf Properties Investment Fund (“APIF”)
Islamic Corporation for the Insurance of Investment and
Export Credit (“ICIIEC”)
Kafala Program
Unit Investment Fund

-

338

21

22

33,077

31,930

1434H

1433H

9,411

136

-

67

12

81

378

379

9,801

663

(ii) Due to related parties - entities related to IDB Group

IDB - Ordinary Capital Resources
IDB - Fael Al Khair Program
IDB - Medical Fund
IDB - World Waqf Fund
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11. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ACCORDING TO THEIR RESPECTIVE
MATURITY PERIODS OR EXPECTED PERIODS TO CASH
CONVERSION
1434H
Assets

Assets and liabilities maturity periods
or expected periods to cash conversion
Less than 3
months

3 to 12
months

1 to
5 Years

Over 5 Years

Total

Cash and cash equivalents

270,096

-

-

-

270,096

Commodity placements through
banks

349,000

497,574

47,000

-

893,574

2,984

160,421

-

-

163,405

Investments in Sukuk

-

127,555

564,595

188,752

880,902

Investments in equity capital

-

-

-

8,533

8,533

Investments in Ijarah

-

-

20,000

-

20,000

Qurood

-

622

2,544

55,440

58,606

45,297

22

-

-

45,319

667,377

786,194

634,139

10,396

-

-

-

10,396

Cash and cash equivalents

238,279

-

-

-

238,279

Commodity placements through
banks

364,500

528,060

-

-

892,560

Murabaha financing, net

-

59,412

-

-

59,412

Investments in Sukuk

-

-

603,502

-

603,502

Investments in Ijarah

-

-

-

20,000

20,000

Qurood

-

-

-

23,930

23,930

43,795

-

-

-

43,795

646,574

587,472

603,502

43,930

1,881,478

1,349

-

-

-

1,349

Murabaha financing, net

Accrued income and other assets
Total assets

252,725 2,340,435

Liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities
1433H
Assets

Accrued income and other assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities
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12. CONCENTRATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The geographical locations of assets and liabilities for 1434H and 1433H reflect the continents in
which the beneficiaries of the assets are located.

1434H

Nonmember

Member countries
Asia

Africa

Europe

countries

Total

Cash and cash equivalents

270,096

-

-

-

270,096

Commodity placements through banks

827,574

-

66,000

-

893,574

Murabaha financing, net

126,481

36,924

-

-

163,405

Investments in Sukuk

880,902

-

-

-

880,902

8,533

-

-

-

8,533

Investments in Ijarah

20,000

-

-

-

20,000

Qurood

40,650

17,956

-

-

58,606

Accrued income and other assets

45,319

-

-

-

45,319

2,219,555

54,880

66,000

10,396

-

-

-

10,396

Cash and cash equivalents

203,644

-

32,000

2,635

238,279

Commodity placements through banks

694,860

-

175,200

22,500

892,560

56,267

3,145

-

-

59,412

Investments in Sukuk

603,502

-

-

-

603,502

Investments in Ijarah

20,000

-

-

-

20,000

7,686

16,244

-

-

23,930

43,795

-

-

-

43,795

1,629,754

19,389

207,200

25,135

1,881,478

1,349

-

-

-

1,349

Investments in equity capital

Total assets

- 2,340,435

Liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities
1433H

Murabaha financing, net

Qurood
Accrued income and other assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities
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13. NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The net assets and liabilities of the Fund in foreign currencies (in thousands of USD equivalents) at
the end of Dhul Hijjah are as follows:
1434H
Euro

1433H

6,772

824

-

(9)

Islamic Dinner (ID)

Pound Sterling

4,049

-

Other currencies

5,293

31,089

14. UNDISBURSED COMMITMENTS

Qurood

1434H

1433H

257,350

43,297

15. RISK MANAGEMENT
The Fund is monitored by the Group Risk Management Department (“GRMD”) of the IDB (“the
Bank”). The Bank has a Group Risk Management Department (“GRMD”) that is fully independent
from all business departments as well as other entities of the Bank. The GRMD is responsible for
identification, assessment, mitigating and reporting of all risks inherent in the Bank’s activities to
maintain its low risk profile. The Bank has also established a Group Risk Management Committee
which ensures that, based on the risk appetite; there are appropriate controls on all major risks
arising from financing and investment operations through reviewing the risk management framework,
policies, procedures, guidelines and risk reports.
a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Fund’s credit risk arises mainly from its
operating and financial assets.
For all classes of financial assets held by the Fund, the maximum credit risk exposure to the
Fund is their carrying value as disclosed in the statement of financial position. The assets which
subject the Fund to credit risk principally consist of commodity placements, investments in
Sukuk, Murabaha financing and Qurood which are mainly covered by sovereign guarantees and
commercial bank guarantees acceptable to the IDB, in accordance with specific eligibility criteria
and credit risk assessments. The Fund’s liquid fund investments portfolio is managed by the
Treasury Department of IDB and comprise deals with reputable banks. Murabaha financing and
Qurood are covered, in most cases, by sovereign guarantees from Member Countries of IDB,
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or commercial bank guarantees from banks whose ratings are acceptable to IDB and the Fund
per its policies. IDB and its related entities and managed funds benefit from preferred creditor
status on sovereign financing, which gives the IDBG priority over other creditors in the event
of default thus constituting a strong protection against credit losses.
Credit risk includes potential losses arising from a counterparty’s (i.e., countries, banks/financial
institutions, corporate, etc.) inability or unwillingness to service its obligation to the Fund. In this
respect, the Bank has developed and put in place comprehensive credit policies and guidelines
as a part of overall credit risk management framework to provide clear guidance on various
types of financing.
These policies are clearly communicated within the Bank with a view to maintain the overall
credit risk appetite and profile within the parameters set by the management of the Bank. The
credit policy formulation, credit limit setting, monitoring of credit exceptions / exposures and
review / monitoring functions are performed independently by the GRMD, which endeavors to
ensure that business lines comply with risk parameters and prudential limits established by the
Board of Executive Directors and the management of the Bank.
An important element of the credit risk management framework is exposure limits structure
for each obligor and group of connected obligors. Moreover, portfolio concentration limits
relating to single country and single obligor are also in place with the view to maintain
appropriate diversification. In summary, IDB has a well-developed exposure and concentration
limit structure for IDB related entities and managed funds that is based on the credit strength of
the beneficiary/obligor, the size of the obligor, as well as the size and structure of the portfolio.
The assessment of any exposure is based on the use of comprehensive internal rating systems
for various potential counterparties eligible to enter into business relationships with IDB and
its managed funds. While extending financing to its member countries, the Bank safeguards its
and its managed funds interests by obtaining adequate guarantees and securities and ensures
that the concerned beneficiaries as well as the guarantors are able to meet their obligations to
IDB and its managed funds. In addition to the above risk mitigation tools, the Bank has in place
a comprehensive approach for risk assessment and assignment of exposure limits for each type
of obligors in line with the best banking practices.
Country risk refers to the risks associated with the economic, social and political environments
of the beneficiary’s home country. Guidelines are in place for assessing and monitoring country
risk profiles and exposure to safeguard the Bank and its funds against undue risk. The country
risk profiles and exposure limits are periodically reviewed taking into consideration the macroeconomic, financial and other developments in the member countries, as well as the status of
their business relationship with IDB and its managed funds, perception of the rating agencies
and institutions of repute, risk perception of market participants and experience of other
multilateral development banks (MDB’s). Countries are classified under 7 risk categories; i.e.,
“A” to “G”, whereby “A” represents the highest creditworthy category (lowest risk) and “G”
represents the lowest creditworthy category (highest risk).
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b) Market risks
The Fund is exposed to following market risks:
i) Currency risk
Currency risk arises from the possibility that changes in foreign exchange rates will affect the
value of the financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, in case the Fund
does not hedge its currency exposure by means of hedging instruments. Exposure to exchange
risk is limited. Most of the Fund’s financing operations are USD-denominated, the same
currency in which the Fund’s resources – i.e. equity are denominated. The Fund does not trade
in currencies. Therefore, it is not exposed to currency trading risk. The Fund has a conservative
policy whereby the currency composition of the portfolio is monitored and adjusted regularly.
ii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. To
mitigate this risk, the Fund adopts a conservative approach by maintaining high liquidity levels
invested in cash and cash equivalents and Murabaha financing with short-term maturity of three
to twelve months.
iii) Equity price risk
The Fund is not exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments as the investments
are held for strategic purpose rather than trading purposes. Equity investments are classified
as available-for-sale. These investments are held in real estate funds and the fluctuation of the
prices in these funds is not significant.
iv) Mark-up risk
Mark-up risk arises from the possibility that changes in mark-up will affect the value of the
financial instruments. The Fund is exposed to mark-up risk on its investments in commodity
placements and investments in Sukuk. In respect of the financial assets, the Fund’s returns are
based on a benchmark and hence vary according to the market conditions.
c) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:
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•

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

•

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

•

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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The following table presents the Fund’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 29
Dhul Hijjah 1434H.

1434H
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through income statement:
- Investments in Sukuk
- Murabaha based profit rate cross currency swaps

-

880,902
77,892

-

880,902
77,892

Available for sale financial assets:
- Investments in equity capital
Total assets

- 958,794

-

958,794

1433H
Level 1
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through income statement:
- Investments in Sukuk
Total assets

-

Level 2

603,502
603,502

Level 3

-

Total

603,502
603,502

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled between
knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Fair value of investments in Sukuk and Murabaha based cross currency and profit rate swaps are
measured based on inputs other than quoted prices that are observable.

16. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Management has determined the chief operating decision maker to be the Board of Executive
Directors as this body is responsible for overall decisions about resource allocation to development
initiatives within its member countries. In order to ensure the availability of sufficient resources to
enable it to meet its developmental objectives, the Fund actively engages in treasury and liquidity
management. Development initiatives are undertaken through a number of Islamic finance products
as disclosed on the face of the Statement of Financial Position which are financed centrally through
the Fund’s resources. Management has not identified separate operating segments within the
definition of FAS 22 “Segment Reporting” since the Board of Executive Directors monitors the
performance and financial position of the Fund as a whole, without distinguishing between the
developmental activities and the ancillary supporting liquidity management activities or geographical
distribution of its development programs. Further, the internal reports furnished to the Board
of Executive Directors do not present discrete financial information with respect to the Fund’s
performance to the extent envisaged in FAS 22.
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